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Corporate Structure

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”) is currently engaged in four
major sectors of business: infrastructure & utilities, consumer products, tourism and retail services and technology.

Infrastructure & utilities sector includes management and operation of the Capital Airport Expressway, the
Shenzhen Shiguan Road and the operation concession of a water treatment plant in Beijing.

Consumer products sector includes manufacture, distribution and sale of beer, wine, dairy products, processed
meat and seafood products.

Tourism and retail services sector includes provision of tourism, retail and hotel services.
Technology sector includes provision of Internet and communications services and information technology
solutions for both hardware and software, construction and installation of geothermal energy systems. The

Group is also engaged in the operation of multipurpose electronic payment cards and on-line medical
insurance and social security insurance business.
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Corperate Structure

As at 12 April 2005

£6.51%

Public Investors

001% Y\ BeijinglEnterprises —

BO%

368 Capital Airport " (Wang£jin I 5581% #
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* Listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange
Y Listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange
# Listed on The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
i Listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
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Highlights

Achievements

Turnover for the year amounted to HK$9.67 billion, representing an increase of 21.3% over last year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to HK$503 million, representing an increase of
11.8% over last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK$0.81, representing an increase of HK$0.09 over last year.

A final dividend of HK20 cents per share is proposed for 2004.

Financial position

2004 year end 2003 year end
HK$m HK$m
Cash 4,195 3,773
Short-term loans 2,100 1,786
Long-term loans 2,293 2,564
Net debt 198 577
Net debt equity ratio 2.5% 7.6%
Minority interests 3,720 3,545
Net Assets 7,881 7,546
|
2004 7,881
2003 7,546
2002 7,260
2001 7026
Equity
Y Attributable to |
‘ 2000 @”52@ Equity Holders
| of the Parent

0 1,000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000 8000 9,000 (HK$m)

i — - PR — —
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Highlights

Earnings

Turnover for the year amounted to HK$9.67 billion, representing an increase of 21.3%
over last year.

2004 9,666
2003 7,970,
2002 7012
2001 6,227|
2000 5213
0 1,000 2,000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000 8000 9,000 10000  Turnover (HK$m)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to HK$503 million.

2004 503
2003 450~ |
2002 é’&@@}ﬂ
2001 571%)
2000 518* t Profit Attributable to
Equity Holders of
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 the Parent (HK$m)

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK$0.81.

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 per share, giving a total annual dividend of HK$0.30
per share.

*  Restated

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2004 7




8

Chairman’s Statement

Yi Xi Qun

| am pleased to announce that Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) continued to record profit
growth in 2004. Turnover for the year amounted to
HK$9.67 billion, representing an increase of
21.3% over the previous year, of which turnover from
operating business amounted to HK$8.78 billion,
representing an increase of 26% over last year. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent for the
year reached HK$503 million, representing an increase
of 11.8% over the previous year. Basic earnings per
share amounted to HK$0.81, representing an increase
of HK$0.09 over the previous year. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommended
a payment of a final dividend of HK 20 cents per
share for 2004.

2004 witnessed a drastic change in the Company's
development strategy since its listing. Hard hit by the
keen market competition and cyclical industry
downturn, Beijing International Switching System
Company Limited (now known as Siemens
Communication Networks Ltd., Beijing ("SCNB")),
Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co., Ltd. (“Sanyuan Foods”)
and Jian Guo Hotel Joint Venture of Beijing (“ian

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004

Guo Hotel"), the formerly important profit sources of
the Company's asset portfolio, recorded significant
deteriorations in their recent results, which substantially
offset the profit growth of other assets and dampened
the overall result performance of the Company.

After thorough planning and consideration, the
Company entered into agreements at different times
of the year to dispose of its 20% interest in SCNB,
50.5% interest in Jian Guo Hotel and 55% interest in
Sanyuan Foods and in return received or will receive
total cash amount of approximately HK$870 million.
The disposal of these assets reflected the Company's
strategy of reorganising assets with low yields.

In addition to streamlining its asset portfolio, the Board,
based on the market trend and development,
conducted a comprehensive review on the Company’s
past market positioning, development tactics and
investment strategy in 2004 and made important
adjustments on its development strategy. The
Company initially lays down the strategic objectives
of becoming an investment and financing platform of
the infrastructure and utilities business of Beijing.

In respect of strategy adjustment, the establishment
of Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited (“BE
Group"”) has aroused widespread concern. On 8
January of this year, BE Group was established by
merging Beijing Holdings Limited (the parent company
of the Company) and-Beijing Gas Group Co., Ltd,,
which constituted a cross industry merger.

Meanwhile, the Company has adjusted its investment
strategy to cater for its core business positioning. The
Company has focused on the business segments of
infrastructure and utilities, especially in the areas of
toll roads, water treatment, environmental protection
and gas supply. In order to focus our investment in




the above segments, we established four major
investment platforms for toll roads, urban water supply,
recycled resources and gas supply early this year. The
rationale behind is to transform the Group to a limited
conglomerate with business synergy.

In the coming year, the Group will implement the
following measures which capitalise on the
opportunities arising from the state-owned enterprise
reforms and cater for the market changes:

1. Stepping up efforts in internal reorganisation:
BE Group, under the direct administration of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Beijing, will
become the controlling company of the
Company upon the completion of shareholding
reallocation. The Group will be well-positioned
to embark on investment projects relating to
Beijing's public utilities and infrastructure in the
course of the persistent economic development
of Beijing.

2. Actively implementing plans to streamline asset
portfolio; to reorganise assets not in line with
the overall development strategy, so as to
develop a clearer positioning for the Group's
core business.

Chairman’s Statement

3. Enhancing the development of the core
business of Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company
Limited (“Yanjing Brewery"), consolidating its
status as a renowned brand in the PRC beer
industry and aiming at a sales volume of over
3 million tons in this year; developing premium
products to mitigate the impact of rising cost of
raw materials on production cost; maintaining
a capital structure of low gearing ratio and taking
full advantage of the opportunities brought
about by acquisitions and mergers; expediting
the development of regional business;
accelerating the pace of strategic research and
paving the way for the Group's sustainable
development.

In 2005, the Board will lead the Company in
consolidating its position as the financing window of
Beijing in the international capital market and in
providing financing channels and management
experience for Beijing's economic development and
city construction.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the

shareholders and all the staff for their dedication and
contribution in the past year.

’ L
T( b #
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 April 2005
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Management Discussion and Analys's

Infrastructure and public utilities

Toll roads

The annual traffic flow of Capital Expressway
increased by 24% to 42.69 million vehicles,
reaching a historical new height. The utilisation
rate has exceeded 90% of the original designed
load. Turnover and profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent increased by 26.6% and
35.39% to HK$352 million and HK$180 miilion
respectively.

The revenue of Shenzhen Shiguan Highway amounted to HK$83.24 million, which was basically the same as
the previous year. Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent was HK$23.59 million, representing an
increase of 3% from last year.

Eplua g Water treatment concession

@ N The operating profit contribution to the Group after amortisation derived
§ from the Beijing No. 9 water treatment concession amounted to approximately
HK$128 million. This project is one of the most important sources of cashflow
for the Group and will continue to provide steady cashflow to the Group in
the future.

10 Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




W anagement Discussion and Analysis

Consumer Products

Beer

The business of Yanjing Brewery continued to grow in
2004. Sales volume of Yanjing Brewery's beer reached a
new high of 2.88 million tons. The nationwide turnover
amounted to approximately HK$3.5 billion, representing
a growth of approximately 21% over last year. During the period, the rise in the price of raw materials resulted in
an increase of cost by approximately HK$151 million. However, Yanjing Brewery's successful exploration into the
premium beer sector offset the additional cost brought about by the rise in the price of raw materials and
contributed to the steady business growth. Operating profit contribution to the Group increased by approximately
13.3% to HK$128 million. In addition, the Group’s shareholding in Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company Limited
decreased due to the exercise of the convertible bonds of Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company Limited by its
holders, and in accounting treatment, the exercise was deemed as the Group's disposal of equity interests which
generate gain. Together with the gain generated from the negative goodwill arising from the merging and
acquisition of enterprises, the Group shared an exceptional gain of total HK$37.66 million. In 2004, the share of
Yanjing Brewery in the national market rose to 11%. It is expected that the sales volume will exceed 3 million
tons in this year, making Yanjing Brewery to be one of the top ten beer breweries in the world.

Dairy

The business of Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co. Ltd.
(“Sanyuan Foods") was hard hit by a series of
unfavourable factors. Accordingly, its turnover
dropped 23% when compared with 2003. Loss
attributable to the Group amounted to HK$66.20
million. Since the Group is adjusting its asset
portfolio and business strategies, it entered into an agreement at the end of 2004 to sell the controlling
interests of Sanyuan Foods at book value (including goodwill) after thorough considerations. The completion
of this transaction will be subject to the approvals of the PRC supervisory authorities.

Retall and Tourism Services

Retail

The expansion of Wangfujing Department Store in second-tier cities in the
inland regions has begun to bear fruit. Turnover amounted to HK$3.259 billion,
representing an increase of 47% when compared with last year. The number
of department stores throughout the country increased to 14. Sales in most of
the stores increased when compared with last year. Profit contribution from the
department stores continued to grow. However, loss incurred from the disposal

of a real estate project in Chengdu offset the growth in profit. The management believes that Wangfujing Department
Stores have come out of the doldrums and will resume its growth momentum in future.

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hotel and tourism

This business segment has completely recovered
from the impact of SARS. The number of tourists
traveling to Badaling and Longgingxia increased
significantly, driving profit back to its normal level.

During the vear, the occupancy rate of Jian Guo

Hotel Joint Venture of Beijing ("Jian Guo Hotel") continued to rise. The relatively out-dated facilities of Jian
Guo Hotel make it difficult to raise the room rates. Beijing Tourism Group, the second largest shareholder of
Jian Guo Hotel intends to re-develop the project. On the basis that it takes a long time for the investment in
the new project to yield returns, the Group sold its 50.5% equity interest in Jian Guo Hotel at book value

(including goodwill) in August 2004.

Technology

Information technology

Beijing Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“Beijing Development”) is
the Group's flagship in information technology business. All its business
segments made progress during the year. With business volume not
yet reaching economies of scale, Beijing Development cannot achieve
any breakthrough in profit.

Others

The progress of its newly-developed geothermal energy system

business was satisfactory with the sales of Beijing Ever Source Scientific

Technology Development Co., Ltd. steadily surpassing those of last
year. Most of the investment in other technology business generated

profit and contributed to the overall results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Yl Xi Qun, aged 57, is the chairman of the Company and chairman of Beijing Holdings Limited. He graduated
from Beijing Chemical Institute in 1975 and later obtained a postgraduate degree in economics and management
engineering at Tsinghua University. From 1986 to 1987, Mr. Yi was in charge of the Beijing Municipal
Government Economic Structure Reform Committee and from 1987 to 1991, he served as the chief executive
officer of Xicheng District of Beijing. Since 1991, Mr. Yi has been an assistant to the Mayor of Beijing as well
as Director of the Economic and Foreign Trade Commission of Beijing Municipality and the Management
Committee of the Beijing Economic and Technology Development Zone. Mr. Yi has in-depth knowledge and
wealth of experience in macroeconomic and microeconomic management. Mr. Yi joined the Group in December
1999.

Zhang Hong Hai, aged 52, is the vice chairman and president of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Beijing University in 1982 and subsequently obtained a post-graduate qualification in business studies at The
International Business School of Hunan University and was awarded with the honor of Senior Economist. Mr.
Zhang has worked for Beijing Municipal Government for many years. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang
was the director of Foreign Affairs Office of the People’s Government of Beijing Municipality & Hong Kong and
Macao Affairs office of the People’s Government of Beijing Municipality. He also served as Vice President of
Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Zhang initially worked as Deputy General Manager and
was then promoted to Vice Chairman and General Manager of Beijing International Trust Investment Limited
during the period from 1990 to 1998, and has accumulated extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. Zhang joined the Group in December 2003.

Ll Fu Cheng, aged 50, is the vice chairman and executive director of the Company. Since 1983, he has held
the posts of deputy secretary and secretary of Yanjing Brewing Factory, and then the chairman and general
manager of Yanjing Group. Mr. Li has over 25 years' experience in the brewery industry. Mr. Li joined the
Group in April 1997.

GUO Ying Ming, aged 61, is the executive director of the Company. He graduated from Beijing Foreign Trade
Institute in 1967. Since February 1989, he has served as general manager, vice chairman and chairman of
Beijing Holdings Limited. Prior to that, from 1985 to 1988, he held the post of chairman and general manager
of China Resource Products (U.S.A)) Limited, the window company of the Beijing Municipal Government in the
US. He has over 30 years' experience in international economics, foreign trade and enterprise management.
From April 1997 to February 2000, Mr. Guo was the vice chairman and president of the Company. Mr. Guo
rejoined the Group in December 2002.

14 Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




Directors and Senior Management

LIU Kai, aged 51, is the executive director and vice president of the Company. Mr. Liu is responsible for the
general management of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Investment Management Co., Ltd. He graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor degree in mechanical engineering in 1979, and later obtained a postgraduate
degree in domestic economics and management at State Administration Institute. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Liu has served as a senior executive of Beijing Transportation Bereau and Beijing Transportation Corporation.
Mr. Liu has over 25 years' experience in economics and management. Mr. Liu joined the Group in January
2001.

BAO Zong Ye, aged 58, was the executive director of the Company. He graduated from Ren Min University of
China in the field of Economics and Business Management in 1986. Since November 1992, he has held the
posts of deputy general manager and later general manager of the Beijing General Corporation of Agriculture
Industry and Commerce. He has many years' experience in economics, retail business and enterprise
management. Mr. Bao is presently the Chairman of San Yuan Group Company. Mr. Bao joined the Group in
May 2003 and resigned in December 2004.

ZHENG Wan He, aged 53, is the executive director of the Company. He graduated from Beijing Economic
Institute in 1983. Since November 1984, he has held the posts of deputy general manager of Beijing
Wangfujing Department Store and later vice chairman and general manager of Wanfujing Group. He has over
15 years’' experience in economics, retail business and enterprise management. Mr. Zheng is presently the
vice chairman of China Youth Entrepreneurs Association and a committee member of China United Commerce
Association. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in April 1997.

WE! En Hong, aged 68, was the executive director of the Company. He graduated from Beijing Posts and
Telecommunications Institute in 1959. Since 1996, he has served as chairman of Beijing International Switching
System Co. Ltd. From 1983 to 1996, he served as deputy executive of the Posts and Telecommunications
Administrative Bureau in Heilongjiang Province in the PRC, and then as the chief executive of the Posts and
Telecommunications Administrative Bureau in Hebei Province in the PRC. He has over 40 years' experience in
the posts and telecommunications industry and in management. Mr. Wei joined the Group in April 1997 and
resigned in April 2004.

Bl Yu Xi, aged 63, was the executive director of the Company. Mr. Bi graduated from Beijing Agricultural
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and Management, and was awarded with the honor of Senior
Economist. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bi served as the deputy chief executive of Beijing Transportation
Bureau. Mr. Bi joined the Group in August 2000 and resigned in April 2004.

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004
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Directors and Senior Management

LI Man, aged 47, is the executive director of the Company. Mr. Li obtained his bachelor degrees of Philosophy
and Economics from Beijing Normal University and Beijing Polytechnic University respectively. Mr. Li served as
Deputy Chief Executive of Beijing Yanqing County Administration Academy and Executive Deputy Principal of
Beijing Science and Technology University, Yanging County Branch since 1996. Mr. Li is presently the director
of Beijing Badaling Special Zone Administrative Centre, the Ceneral Manager of Badaling Tourism Company
and the General Manager of Badaling Tourism Development Company. He has indepth-knowledge and
experience in hotel management and tourism business. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2001.

Ll Zhong Gen, aged 53, was the executive director of the Company. He graduated from Beijing No. 2 Foreign
Language Institute in 1977. Since October 1994, he served as the director and deputy general manager of
Beijing Tourism Company Limited. Prior to that, from April 1987 to October 1994, he held the posts of general
manager of Jianguo Hotel, director of State Asset Administration and deputy vice general manager of the
Beijing Tourism Bureau, and general manager of Beijing Tourism Corporation and Beijing Hotel Management
Company. Mr. Li has over 25 years' experience in finance, tourism development and hotel management. Mr.
Li joined the Group in April 1997 and resigned in December 2004.

GUO Pu Jin, aged 51, is the executive director of the Company. He graduated from the political education
faculty of Capital Normal University in 1976 and later finished his postgraduate studies at Capital Trade and
Economics University. Mr. Guo was the chief executive officer of Da Xing District of Beijing previously and is
currently the Chairman of Beijing Capital Expressway Development Company Limited. Mr. Guo has over 28
years' experience in government affairs and corporate management in China. Mr. Guo joined the Group in
April 2004.

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

FANG Fang, aged 39, is now the director of J.P. Morgan Securities Pte. Limited. Mr. Fang was previously the
non-executive director of the Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in management information system
from Tsinghua University in the PRC and a MBA degree from Vanderbilt University in the U.S. Prior to joining
the Company, he was an investment banker with Merrill Lynch & Co. and Seapower Financial Services Group
in New York and Hong Kong, specialising in corporate finance and advisory services, where he gained
extensive experience in restructuring and financing Chinese companies. Mr. Fang joined the Group in May
2000 and resigned in April 2004.

Independent Non-executive Directors

LAU Hon Chuen, Ambrose, aged 57, holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London and is
a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, a China-Appointed Attesting Officer and a Notary Public. Mr.
Lau is also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Selection Committee For the First Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") and a Nonofficial Justice of the Peace. He was the President of the Law Society of Hong Kong from
1992 to 1993. Mr. Lau was a member of the Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR and the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau joined the Group in April 1997.

Dr Leo Tung-Hai LEE, G8s, LLD, Jr, aged 83, is Chairman of Tung Tai Group of Companies and an independent
non-executive director or non-executive director of several publicly listed companies in Hong Kong. He is a
member of a number of public services committees and heads many social service organizations, including as
an adviser of the Advisory Board of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, Chairman of Association of Chairmen of the
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong Association and Vice President of China
Overseas Friendship Association. He served as a Standing Committee member of the eighth and ninth
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference National Committee; an Adviser on Hong Kong Affairs to
the Hong Kong & Macau Affairs Office of the State Council and Xinhua News Agency, Hong Kong Branch; a
member of the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; and a member of
the Selection Committee of the First Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Dr Lee has
been honoured with awards by different governments, which include Cavaliere di Gran Croce of ltaly, O.B.E. of
Creat Britain, Chevalier Legion d'Honneur of France, Commandeur de 'Ordre de Leopold Il of Belgium and
Gold Bauhinia Star of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government of the People’s Republic of
China. Dr. Lee has over 45 years of experience in business management. Dr Lee joined the Group in April
1997.
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Directors and Senior Management

WANG Xian Zhang, aged 63, graduated from the Northeast Finance & Economics University, China in 1965.
He has been engaged in the insurance industry since 1970, and was Deputy General Manager of the People’s
Insurance Company of China (“PICC"), Dalian Branch and then General Manager of PICC, Liaoning Branch.
From 1986 to 1995, he was Vice Chairman and Vice President of PICC. Since 1996, he has been Vice
Chairman and Vice President of the People’s Insurance Company of China (Group). In 1993, he set up China
insurance Group in Hong Kong. Since then he has been Vice Chairman and President of China Insurance H.K.
(Holdings) Co. Ltd. Mr. Wang is also Chairman of the Ming An Insurance Co. (H.K.) Ltd., China Reinsurance
Co. (H.K) Ltd. and CIG-WH International (Holdings) Ltd. and Director of several financial institutions such as
The Bank of China, The Ka Wah Bank Ltd. and Top Glory Insurance Co. (Bermuda) Ltd. Mr. Wang joined the
Group in April 1997.

WU lJie Si, aged 53, holds a doctorate degree in Economics. He conducted a post-doctorate research work in
theoretical economics at the Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred the professorship qualification by
the Nankai University in 2001, During the period from 1984 to 1995, Mr. Wu was with the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (“the Bank”) working in a number of positions, including as the president of
Shenzhen Branch of the Bank. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Wu was vice mayor of Shenzhen Municipal Government
and from 1998 to 2000 he was the assistant to governor of Guangdong province. He is the Chairman of
Guangdong Yue Gang Investment Holdings Company Limited and GDH Limited, the Honorary President of
Guangdong Investment Limited and Guangdong Tannery Limited and an independent non-executive director
of China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited. He has extensive experience in finance and
management. Mr. Wu joined the Group in July 2004,

THELEEN Robert A., aged 59, is the Chairman, founder and Co-CEO of ChinaVest, Ltd, a Shanghai-based
Merchant Bank. Mr. Theleen was a pioneer in the private equity investment industry in China where, in 1982,
he launched one of the first venture capital funds investing in China. Mr. Theleen is also a Trustee of the Asia
Foundation and an active member of the business community in Shanghai where he resides. He was
educated at Duquesne University and at the American School of Management in the United States where he
completed his MBA degree in 1970. He is also a member of the Advisory Board of the Hopkins-Nanjing
Center in Nanjing, China. Mr. Theleen joined the Group in July 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

E Meng, aged 47, is a vice president of the Company. Mr. E graduated from China Science and Technology
University with a master's degree in engineering. He is a PRC senior accountant with the qualifications of PRC
certified accountant, asset appraiser, certified real estate appraiser and tax appraiser. From 1988 to 1998, Mr.
E was the deputy director of Beijing New Technology Development Zone (the "“BNTDZ"), the director for
BNTDZ department of finance auditing and state asset management, the manager of BNTDZ Investment
Operation Company, director of Beijing Tianping Accounting Firm and the deputy director of the State Asset

Management Office of Beijing Haidian district. Mr. € has over 19 year's experience in economics, finance and
enterprise management. Mr. E joined the Group in November 1997.

JIANG Xin Hao, aged 40, is the vice president of the Company. Mr. Jiang was graduated from Fudan
University in 1987 with a bachelor's degree in Law, and then in 1992 with a master's degree in Law. Mr. Jiang
is a former teacher at Beijing University between 1992 and 1995. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Jiang was a deputy
general manager of Jingtai Finance Company in Hong Kong, and subsequently a director and vice president of
BHL Industrial Investment Company. From 1997 to February 2005, Mr. Jiang was a director and CEO of
Tramford International Limited, a public company listed on Nasdaq. Mr. Jiang was a manager of the investment
development department of BHL and a general manager of Beijing BHL Investment Center between May
2000 and February 2005. He served as a policy analyst of the Chinese State Commission of Restructuring
Economic System from 1987 to 1989. Mr. Jiang has over 10 years of experience in economics, finance and
corporate management. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in February 2005.

TAM Chun Fai, Jimmy, aged 43, is the financial controller and the company secretary of the Company. Mr.
Tam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and
is a regular member of Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA") and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant. Mr. Tam has over 16 years' experience in auditing and corporate advisory services with
major international accounting firms. He was involved in floatation and audit work of a wide variety of
businesses, including electronics, electrical appliances, athletic shoes manufacturing, banking, insurance, securities
and property development. Mr. Tam joined the Group in April 1997
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Report cf the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2004.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial statements. During the year, the Group discontinued its
dairy operations, further details of which are included in note 11 to the financial statements. There were no
other changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2004 and the state of affairs of the Company and the

Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 29 to 155.

An interim dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share was paid on 9 November 2004. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on the
register of members on 17 June 2005. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance sheet.

Summeary financial information

A summary of the published results, and assets, liabilities and total equity of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate,
Is set out on pages 156 to 157. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Fixed assets and hotel properties, and investment properties

Details of movements in the fixed assets and hotel properties, and investment properties of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group's hotel and investment properties are set out on pages 158 to 159.

Share options

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during the vear, together with the reasons therefor, are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
35(b) to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2004, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$642,021,000, of which
HK$124,500,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's share
premium account, in the amount of HK$4,839,497,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Major customers and major suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers and purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's turnover and total purchases, respectively.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yi Xi Qun (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hong Hai (Vice Chairman and President)
Mr. Li Fu Cheng (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Guo Ying Ming

Mr. Liu Kai (Vice President)

Mr. Zheng Wan He

Mr. Li Man

Mr. Cuo Pu Jin (appointed on 28 April 2004)

Mr. Wei En Hong (resigned on 28 April 2004)

Mr. Bi Yu Xi (resigned on 28 April 2004)

Mr. Bao Zong Ye (resigned on 29 December 2004)
Mr. Li Zhong Gen (resigned on 29 December 2004)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Fang Fang (resigned on 21 April 2004)
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Report of the Directors

Directors (continued)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose

Mr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo

Mr. Wang Xian Zhang

Mr. Wu Jie Si (appointed on 2 July 2004)
Mr. Robert A. Theleen (appointed on 2 July 2004)

In accordance with articles 96 and 105(A) of the Company’s articles of association and the recommendation
of the board of directors, Messrs. Li Fu Cheng, Zheng Wan He, Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose, Wu Jie Si and Robert
A. Theleen will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Directors’ and senfor management’s biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 14 to 19 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Messrs. Yi Xi Qun and Zhang Hong Hai have service contracts with the Company for terms of five and three
years, respectively, commencing on 1 June 2003 and 3 December 2003, respectively, with respective unexpired
periods of approximately 41 months and 23 months as at 31 December 2004.

During the year, Mr. Liu Kai renewed his service contract with the Company for a further period of three years
which commenced on 16 January 2004, with an unexpired period of approximately 24 months as at
31 December 2004, and is subject to termination by either party giving not less than six months' written
notice.

These service contracts, which were entered into before 1 February 2004, are exempt from the shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 13.68 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) which has taken effect since 1 February 2004.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a

service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directers’ remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Company's board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares

At 31 December 2004, the interests and short positions of the directors in the share capital and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company:
The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are separately disclosed in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Long positions in shares of associated corporations:
Percentage of the

Number of associated
Name of ordinary corporation’s
Name of director associated corporation shares held issued share capital
Mr. Li Fu Cheng Beijing Yanjing Brewery 20,419* 0.0030
Company Limited@
Mr. Zheng Wan He Beijing Wangfujing 45,738* 0.0116
Department Store
(Group) Co., Ltd.@
@ All these associated corporations are indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company

# All interests are directly beneficially owned by the directors
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Directors’ imterests and short positions in shares and underlying shares
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2004, none of the directors had registered an interest or short
position in-the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or convertible bonds

During the year, Mr. Li Fu Cheng purchased 1,699 additional ordinary shares of Beijing Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, through the conversion of 180 units of the 5-
year 1.2% convertible bonds with a face value of RMB100 each of Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company Limited
held by him.

Apart from the foregoing and save as disclosed under the heading "Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in note 34 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Contract of significance

On 3 December 2004, the Company entered into a share transfer agreement with Beijing Holdings Limited
("BHL"), the ultimate holding company, to conditionally dispose of the Company's 34.54% equity interest in
Beijing Enterprises (Dairy) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to BHL for a cash consideration
of RMB237,392,000 (approximately HK$223,638,200). The contract terms have been reviewed by an
independent board committee comprising all the independent non-executive directors of the Company, who
has confirmed that the transaction was fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned. Further details of the transaction undertaken in connection with this contract during the year are
included in note 11 to the financial statements.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests in shares and
underlying shares
At 31 December 2004, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company

were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long positions:
Number of ordinary shares held,

capacity and nature of interest Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

Name Notes owned corporations Total capital
Modern Orient Limited 100,050,000 - 100,050,000 16.07
Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited (a) 313,949,900 100,050,000 413,999,900 66.51
Beijing Holdings Limited (b) 271,100 413,999,900 414,271,000 66.55

Notes:

(a) The interest disclosed includes the shares owned by Modern Orient Limited. Modern Orient Limited is held directly as to 100%
by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited. Accordingly, Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in
the shares owned by Modern Orient Limited.

®) The interest disclosed includes the shares owned by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited and Modern Orient Limited. Beijing
Enterprises Investments Limited, the holding company of Modern Orient Limited, is held indirectly as to 66.48% by BHL.
Accordingly, BHL is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited and Modern Orient
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2004, no person, other than the directors of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group during the year are
set out in notes 11, 30 and 49 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group were (i) in the ordinary course of the Group's business
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; (ii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
(iily within the prescribed limits as set out in the waiver letters in respect of connected transactions granted by
the Stock Exchange to the Company.

Events after the balance sheet date

Details of the significant events after the balance sheet date of the Group are set out in note 50 to the
financial statements.

Loan agreement with covenants relating to specific performance of the
controlling shareholders

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the following disclosures
are included in respect of the Company's syndicated loan facility, which contains covenants requiring performance
obligations of the Company’s holding companies.

In 2001, the Company obtained a five-year US$180 million syndicated loan facility. The loan agreement
includes certain conditions imposing specific performance obligations on the Company’s holding companies,
among which are the following events which would constitute an event of default on the loan facility:

1. If the beneficial interest in more than 50% of the entire issued capital of the Company ceases to be
owned by persons or entities controlled by the Beijing Municipal People's Government of China; or

2. If any of the Company's holding companies stops or suspends payments to its creditors generally, or is
unable to or admits its inability to pay off its debts as and when they fall due, or is declared or becomes
bankrupt or insolvent.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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Corporate goverance

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the Code of Best Practice (the "Code") as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report, except
that the independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for specific terms as required
by paragraph 7 of the Code, but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's
articles of association.

The Code was replaced by the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "Code on CG Practices”) which
has become effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005. Appropriate actions are
being taken by the Company for complying with the Code on CG Practices.

Model code of securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company's code of conduct for dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting period covered by
the annual report.

Audit committee

The Company has an audit committee which was established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and
internal controls. The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Messrs. Lee Tung Hai, Leo, Wang Xian Zhang and Wu Jie Si.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

7‘( ok £

Chairman

¢

Hong Kong
12 April 2005
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Report of the Auditors

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
KR & O OE KO

To the members
Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 29 to 155 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Companies Ordinance reqguires the directors to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and the Group's circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

MA

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
12 April 2005
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Consclidated Profit and Loss Account

Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
TURNOVER 5
Continuing operations 8,779,956 6,966,336
Discontinued operations 11 (a) 885,684 1,003,811
9,665,640 7,970,147
Cost of sales (7,005,934) (5,689,268)
Cross profit 2,659,706 2,280,879
Interest income 44,751 38,598
Other revenue and gains, net 5 362,779 308,367
Selling and distribution costs (835,106) (727,046)
Administrative expenses (1,095,343) (839,675)
Other operating expenses, net (225,923) (135,511)
Revaluation surplus on investment properties 13,785 200
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6 924,649 825,812
Finance costs 7 (138,048) (150,370)
Share of profits and losses of:
Jointly-controlled entities 56,453 12,959
Associates 51,175 33,356
Amortisation of goodwill arising on acquisition
of jointly-controlled entities - (4,699)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Continuing operations 1,018,762 831,653
Discontinued operations 11(a) (124,533) (14,595)
894,229 817,058
TAX 10
Continuing operations (233,156) (196,171)
Discontinued operations 11(a) 3,687 6,810
(229,469) (189,361)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Continuing operations 785,606 635,482
Discontinued operations 11{a) (120,846) (7,785)
664,760 627,697
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent:
Continuing operations 571,892 449,204
Discontinued operations (68,704) 841
12 503,188 450,045
Minority interests 161,572 177,652
664,760 627,697
DIVIDENDS 15
[nterim 62,250 62,250
Proposed final 124,500 112,050
186,750 174,300
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14
Basic for profit for the year HK$0.81 HK$0.72
Basic for profit from continuing operations HK$0.92 HK$0.72
Diluted for profit for the year HK$0.79 HK$0.71
Diluted for profit from continuing operations HK$0.90 HX$0.71
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Censolidated Balance Sheet

31 December 2004
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2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Fixed assets 15 6,338,571 6,497,501
Investment properties 16 342,722 277461
Lease premium for land 17 430,193 436,026
Intangible assets 18 1,560,413 1,649,459
Goodwill: 19
Goodwill 330,198 300,411
Negative goodwill - (7,547)
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 21 556,678 1,029,465
Interests in associates 22 590,869 444,817
Properties under development 132,032 120,974
Trade and bills receivables 28 69,310 49,366
Other receivables 29 176,881 145,241
Pledged bank balances 23 8,743 7,812
Available-for-sale financial assets/Long term investments 24 285,056 289,557
Deferred tax assets 39 62,747 44,965
10,884,413 11,285,508
Current assets:
Lease premium for land 17 8,176 9,693
Properties held for sale 25 62,990 528,776
Inventories 26 1,239,969 1,006,211
Amounts due from customers for contract work 27 16,915 6,750
Trade and bills receivables 28 790,034 744,128
Other receivables 29 825,359 688,090
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss/Short term investments 31 50,202 48,765
Taxes recoverable 20,167 22,576
Pledged bank balances 23 45,168 56,875
Cash and cash equivalents 32 4,141,464 3,708,292
7,200,444 6,820,156
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 11(b) 1,304,733 -
8,505,177 6,820,156
TOTAL ASSETS 19,389,590 18,105,664
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Consclidated Balance Sheet

31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Issued capital 33 62,250 62,250
Reserves 35(a) 7,694,348 7,371,838
Proposed final dividend 13 124,500 112,050
7,881,098 7,546,138
Minority interests 3,720,099 3,545,408
TOTAL EQUITY 11,601,197 11,091,546
Non-current liabilities:
Bank and other borrowings 36 1,705,134 1,904,929
Convertible bonds 37 587,424 659,444
Other long term liabilities 38 8,466 38,253
Deferred tax liabilities 39 163,735 163,570
2,464,759 2,766,186
Current liabilities:
Trade and bills payables 40 765,782 671,105
Amounts due to customers for contract work 27 51,770 25,816
Other payables and accruals 4] 1,544,281 1,436,274
Taxes payable 42 368,369 329,001
Bank and other borrowings 36 2,099,637 1,785,726
4,829,839 4247922
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale 11¢b) 493,795 -
5,323,634 4247922
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,788,393 7,014,118
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,389,590 18,105,664

Yi Xi Qun
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2004

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Hotel
Share property Investment Exchange PRC Proposed
Issued  premium Capital revaluation revaluation fluctuation teserve  Retained final Minority Total
Notes capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds profits  dividend Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 35(a) (note 35(a)
i) (i)
At 1 January 2003:
As previously reported 62,250 4,839,497 171,254 3,173 - 33,749 484,739 1,553,602 112,050 7,260,314 3,099,973 10,360,287
Effect of adopting
HKAS 16, HKAS 40
and SSAP-Int 23 2(b) - - 18,044 - - - (1804%) - - - -
As restated 62,250 4,835,497 171,254 21,217 - 33,749 484,739 1,535,558 112,050 7,260,314 3,098,973 10,360,287
Exchange realignment - - - - - 1,724 - - - 1,724 2,333 4,057
Revaluation surplus,
net of deferred tex
effect, as restated 2(b) - - - 3,223 - - - - - 3,223 - 3,223
Impairment of goodwill
remaining eliminated
against consolidated
capital reserve 19 - - 5,132 - - - - - - 5,132 - 5,132
Total income for the year
recognised directly
in equity - - 5132 3,223 - 1,724 - - - 10,079 2,333 12,412
Profii for the year,
as restated - - - - - - - 450,045 - 450,045 177,652 627,697
Total recognised income
and expense for the year - - 5132 3,223 - 1,724 - 450,045 - 460,124 178,985 640,109
Capital contribution from
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - 420,250 420,250
Acquisition of interests
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - 31,022 31,022
Acquisition of
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - (21,150) (21,150)
Deemed disposal of
interests in subsidiaries - - 126,283 397 - (507) (4,602) (121,571) - - (96,530) (96,530)
Final 2002 dividend
declared - - - - - - - - (112,050)  (112,050) - (112,050)
Interim 2003 dividend 13 - - - - - - - (62,250) - (62,250) - (62,250)
Proposed final 2003
dividend 13 - - - - - - - (112,050) 112,050 - - -
Dividend paid to
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (68,142) (68,142)
Transfer to reserves - - 3,974 - - - 123,296 (127,270) - - - -
At 31 December 2003,
as restated 62,250 4,839,497%  306,643* 24,837* == 34,966%  603,433* 1,562,462* 112,050 7,546,138 3,545,408 11,091,546
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eguity

Year ended 31 December 2004

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Hotel
Share property Investment Exchange PRC Proposed
Issued  premium Capital revaluation revaluation fluctuation reserve  Retained final Minority Total
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds profits  dividend Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00Q HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'G00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 35(a) (note 35(a)
(i) ()

At 31 December 2003:
As previously reported 62,250 4,839,497 306,643 3,570 - 34,966 603,433 1,583,729 112,050 7,545,138 3,545,408 11,091,546
Effect of adopting
HKAS 16, HKAS 40

and SSAP-Int 23 2{b) - - - 21,267 - - - (21,267) - -~ - -
As restated 62,250 4,839,497 306,643 24,837 - 34,866 603,433 1,562,462 112,050 7,545,138 3,545,408 11,091,546
Effect of adopting
HKFRS 3 2(d) - - (657,924) - - - - 663,614 - 5,690 1,857 7,547
At 1 January 2004,
as restated 62,250 4,839,497 (351,281) 24,837 - 34,966 603,433 2,226,076 112,050 7,551,828 3,547,265 11,099,093
Exchange realignment - - - - - 382 - - - 382 269 651

Fair value adjustments

of available-for-sale

financial assets - - - - (44,300} - - - - (44,300) - (44,300)
Impairment of

available-for-sale

financial assets

recognised during

the year in the profit and

loss account - - - - 44,300 - - - - 44,300 - 44,300

Total income and expense

for the year recognised

directly in equity - - - - - 382 - - - 382 269 651
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 503,188 - 503,188 161,572 664,760

Total recognised income
ond expense for the year - - - - - 382

ll

503,188 - 503,570 161,841 665411

Capital contribution from

minority interests - - - - - - - - - ~ 152,890 152,880
Acquisition of interests

in subsidiaries - - - - - ~ - - - ~ 69,389 59,385
Acquisition of

minority interests - - - - - - - - - ~ (52,650) (52,650)
Disposal of interests

in subsidiaries - - - - - (3) - 3 - ~ (43,148)  (43,148)
Deemed disposal of

interests in subsidiaries - - 24,654 - - - (2.644) (22,010) - ~ (20,715) (20,715)
Disposal of interests in

jointly-controlled entities - -
Deemed disposal of

interest in a

jointly-controlled entity - - - - - - (65) 65 - ~ - -
Disposal of interest in

an associate - - - - - (2,349) (66,059) 68,408 - - - -
Deemed disposal of

interest in an associate - - (1,219) - - - (218) 1,437 - ~ - -
Goodwill released upon

disposal of interest in a

jointly-controlled entity - - 40,757 - - - - (40,757) - ~ - -
Goodwill released upon

disposal of interest in

(24,837) - (709) (1,644) 27,190 - - - -

an associate - - 74,167 - - - - (74,167) - - - -
Final 2003 dividend

declared - - - - - - - - (112,050)  (112,050) - (112,050
Interim 2004 dividend i3 - - - - - - - (62,250) - (62,250 - (62,250)
Proposed final 2004

dividend 13 - - - - - - - (124,500) 124,500 ~ - -
Dividend paid to

minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - ~ (94,773) (94,773)
Transfer to reserves - - 2,237 - - - 87,798 (90,035) - ~ - -
At 31 December 2004 62,250 4,839,497* (210,685)* —* -* 32,287* 620,601 2,412,648* 124,500 7,881,098 3,720,095 11,601,197
* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$7,694,348,000 (2003: HK$7,371,838,000, as restated) in

the consolidated balance sheet.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 894,229 817,058
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 7 138,048 150,370
Share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled
entities and associates (107,628) (46,315)
Revaluation surplus on investment properties (13,785) (200)
Depreciation 6 592,985 529,550
Amortisation of operating concessions 6 101,367 101,367
Amortisation of management information systems 6 1,886 1,886
Amortisation of licences 6 1,435 735
Amortisation of goodwill 6, 21 - 25,095
Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the investees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost recognised as income 5 (35,767) -
Negative goodwill recognised as income 5 - (10,414)
Impairment of fixed assets 6 29,386 -
Impairment of deferred development costs 6 - 13,294
impairment of goodwill 6 17,512 7,488
Impairment of interest in an associate ) - 7,065
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 6 44,300 -
Impairment of long term investments 6 - 46,577
Interest income (44,751) (38,598)
Investment income 5 (3,053) (7,429)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets, net 6 14,370 (8,948)
Gain on disposal of investment properties 5 (238) -
Loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries 3 6,433 -
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries 5 (20,715) (96,530)
Gain on partial disposal of interest in a jointly-controlled entity 5 - (779)
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in a jointly-controlled entity 6 680 -
Cain on disposal of interests in associates 5 (96,766) -
Cain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 5 (369) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 5 (6,298) -
Gain on disposal of long term investments 5 - (8,008)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss 5 (841) -
Gain on disposal of short term investments 5 - (1.227)
Unrealised loss on revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net 6 4,570 -
Unrealised gain on revaluation of short term investments, net 5 - (2,345)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,516,990 1,479,692
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2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,516,990 1,479,692
Decrease/(increase) in lease premium for land 15,709 (21,217)
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for sale 465,786 (118,607)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development (11,058) 175,563
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (305,424) 80,353
Increase in amount due from customers for contract work (10,165) (2,234)
Increase in trade and bills receivables (172,549) (151,097)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables (242,387) 42,374
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (40,082) -
Purchases of short term investments - (6,294)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 34,916 -
Proceeds from disposal of short term investments - 8,383
Increase in taxes recoverable (1,240) (6,182)
Increase in trade and bills payables 108,220 11,702
Increase in amounts due to customers for contract work 25,954 24,612
Increase in other payables and accruals 36,749 324,331
Increase/(decrease) in other taxes payable (5,096) 6,846
Decrease in other long term liabilities (29,787) (25,043)
Exchange adjustments 896 -
Cash generated from operations 1,387,432 1,823,182
Dividends received from jointly-controlled entities and associates 98,978 9,914
Hong Kong profits tax paid (712) (571)
Mainland China income tax paid (187,418) (111,810)
Overseas income tax paid (486) (14)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,297,794 1,720,701




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of fixed assets 7, 15 (1,058,061) (768,481)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 121,906 90,621
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 6,679 -
Purchases of intangible assets 18 (15,642) (4,050)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) 223,920 (75,545)
Acquisition of minority interests (27,382) (43,315)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45(b) (14,333) -
Acquisition of and increase in investments in
jointly-controlled entities and associates (258,166) (68,691)
Proceeds from disposal of interests
in jointly-controlled entities and associates 355,722 21,667
Deposit paid for acquisition of interests in companies 29 (156,827) (141,309)
Net (increase)/decrease in amounts due from/to and loans
to jointly-controlled entities and associates (6,948) 23,154
Purchases of available-for-sales financial assets (10,828) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 41,512
Purchases of long term investments - (40,012)
Proceeds from disposal of long term investments - 51,179
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with a maturity
of more than three months when acquired (142,926) 214,225
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank balances 10,620 8,068
Interest received 44,751 38,598
Investment income received 3,053 7,429
Net cash outflow from investing activities (882,950) (686,462)
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Consclidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions by minority shareholders 80,870 420,250
New loans 2,886,896 1,860,101
Repayment of loans (2,549,491) (2,598,517)
Interest paid 7 (139,152) (151,174)
Dividends paid (174,300) (174,300)
Dividends paid to minarity shareholders (94,773) (68,142)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 10,050 (711,782)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 424,894 322,457
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,083,000 2,760,766
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (51) (223)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 3,507,843 3,083,000
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 32 2,990,437 2,059,019
Cash equivalents 32 41,136 -
Time deposits 32 1,163,802 1,713,960
Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to discontinued operations 11(b) 134,597 -
4,329,972 3,772,979
Less: Pledged bank balances 23 (53,911) (64,687)
Time deposits with maturity of
more than three months when acquired (768,218) (625,292)
3,507,843 3,083,000
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Balance Sheet

31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Fixed assets 15 40,668 40,945
Investment properties 16 134,000 134,000
Interests in subsidiaries 20 5,915,236 5,820,377
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 21 (789) 18,500
Interests in associates 22 145,247 145,744
QOther receivables 29 4,055 3,931
Available-for-sale financial assets/Long term investments 24 80,462 104,384
6,318,879 6,267,881
Current assets:
Trade and bills receivables 28 3,742 1,132
Other receivables 29 178,477 15,239
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
{oss/Short term investments 3] 37,091 40,919
Cash and cash equivalents 32 489,459 589,730
708,769 647,020
TOTAL ASSETS 7,027,648 6,914,901
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:
Issued capital 33 62,250 62,250
Reserves 35(b) 5,357,018 5,160,625
Proposed final dividend 13 124,500 112,050
TOTAL EQUITY 5,543,768 5,334,925
Non-current liabilities:
Bank and other borrowings 36 1,400,850 1,400,850
Current liabilities:
Other payables and accruals 47 73,906 171,043
Taxes payable 42 9,124 8,083
83,030 179,126
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,483,880 1,579,976
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,027,648 6,914,801

Yi Xi Qun
Director

Zhang Hong Hai

Director
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

1. Corporate information

During the year, Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company” or the parent) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

. production, distribution and sale of consumer products, including beer, dairy products (discontinued
during the year — note 11) and processed food products in Beijing and other provinces in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

. investment in transportation infrastructure, including the Capital Airport Expressway, which connects
the Capital Airport and the city centre of Beijing, and the Shenzhen Shiguan Road and Bridge,
which is located in Shenzhen Municipality, the PRC

. the provision of tourism services in Badaling Great Wall and Longgingxia, scenic areas in Beijing
. the provision of hotel services in Beijing and Wuxian, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

. the provision of retail services in Beijing and certain other cities in the PRC

. investment in commercial and residential properties in Beijing and Hong Kong

operation of a water purification and treatment plant in Beijing
. property construction and development

. production, distribution and sale of telecommunication equipment; and the provision of
telecommunications and information technology (“IT") related services

. construction of geothermal energy systems and provision of related installation services

. restaurant operations in the PRC, Thailand, Indonesia, Singapore and Malaysia

As at 31 December 2004 and the date of approval of these financial statements, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited, which is incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, and in the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company is Beijing Holdings
Limited ("BHL"), which is incorperated in Hong Kong.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

Changes in accounting policies

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued a number of new Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations, herein
collectively referred to as the new HKFRSs, which are generally effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. The Group has resolved to early adopt all HKFRSs issued up to the date of
approval of these financial statements.

The HKFRSs which are relevant to these financial statements are set out below and the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 have been restated in accordance with the relevant
requirements.

. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”

. HKAS 2 “Inventories”

. HKAS 7 “Cash Flow Statements”

. HKAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”
. HKAS 10 “Events after the Balance Sheet Date”

. HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”

. HKAS 12 “Income Taxes"

. HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”

. HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”

. HKAS 17 “Leases”

. HKAS 18 "Revenue”

. HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

. HKAS 20 "Accounting for Government Crants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”
. HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”

. HKAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”

. HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”

. HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”

. HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates”

. HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”

. HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”

. HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share”

. HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”

. HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets”

. HKAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
. HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”

. HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”

. HKAS 40 “Investment Property”

. HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment”

. HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
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31 December 2004

2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

HKAS-Int 10 "Government Assistance — No Specific Relation to Operating Activities (HKAS
20)"

HKAS-Int 13 “Jointly-Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers"

HKAS-Int 15 “Operating Leases — Incentives”

HKAS-Int 21 "Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets”

HKAS-Int 27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”

HKAS-Int 29 “Disclosure — Service Concession Arrangements”

HKFRS-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”

SSAP-Int 23 "The Appropriate Accounting Policies for Hotel Properties”

SSAP-Int 24 “Revenue — Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Properties”

All relevant changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance with the provisions of

the respective standards.

The major effect of adoption of these HKFRSs are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

The adoption of HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in accounting policy relating to leasehold land.
Leasehold land and buildings were previously carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 17, a lease of
land and building should be split into a lease of land and a lease of building in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and the building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease. The lease premium for land is stated at cost and amortised
over the period of the lease whereas the leasehold building is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The adoption of HKAS 16, HKAS 40 and SSAP-Int 23 has resulted in a change in accounting
policy for the Group’s investment and hotel properties.

Changes in valuation of the investment property were previously dealt with in an investment
property revaluation reserve, on a portfolio basis. Following the adoption of HKAS 40, all changes
in valuation of the investment property would be recognised in the profit and loss account. There
is no impact on these financial statements as a result of this change in accounting policy because
the Group's investment properties had a net revaiuation deficit position as at 31 December
2004, 2003 and 2002 and the changes in valuation of the Group’s investment properties during
the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 would be recognised in the profit and loss
account irrespective of whether the old policy or the new policy is applied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) (continued)

Hotel properties were previously not depreciated, except where the unexpired terms of the lease
is 20 years or less, in which case depreciation was provided on the then carrying amount over
the remaining term of the lease, and were stated at their open market values on the basis of
annual professional valuations performed at the end of each financial year. Upon the adoption of
HKAS 16, HKAS 40 and SSAP-Int 23, hotel properties would be stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The effect on these financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2004 as a consequence of this change in accounting policy for
hotel properties is summarised as follows:

. share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities for the year ended 31 December
2004 was decreased by an aggregate amount of HK$6,797,000, net of deferred tax effect,
in respect of the additional deprecation charge provided for the hotel properties held by
two jointly-controlled entities of the Group; and

. each of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts for profit for the year and for
profit from continuing operations has been decreased by HK$0.01.

In the absence of any specific transitional requirements in HKAS 16, HKAS 40 and SSAP-Int 23,
the new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. The comparative statements for the
year ended 31 December 2003 have been restated to conform to the new policy. The effect of
the change in this accounting policy on the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2003 is summarised as follows:

. retained profits and the hotel property revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2003 have
been decreased and increased by HK$21,267,000, respectively;

. retained profits and the hotel property revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2003 have been
decreased and increased by HK$18,044,000, respectively;

. a net decrease in the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent of
HK$3,223,000 and a corresponding increase in revaluation surplus credited to the hotel

property revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 December 2003; and

. each of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts for profit for the year and for
profit from continuing operations has been decreased by HK$0.01.
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31 December 2004

2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(¢) HKFRS 2 requires an expense to be recognised where the Group buys goods or services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares, or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a
given number of shares or rights over shares. HKFRS 2 requires the expensing of employees’ and
directors’ share options and other share-based incentives by using an option-pricing model.

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-
settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to share options granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested on or before 31 December 2003. The expenses so calculated are not
material to the financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003.

(d) The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 has resulted in a change in accounting policy
for goodwill and negative goodwill. Prior to the adoption:

. goodwill arising from acquisitions after 1 January 2001 was amortised on the straight-line
basis over a period of not exceeding 20 years;

. goodwill was assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date;

. to the extent that negative goodwill did not relate to identifiable expected future losses and
expenses as at the date of acquisition, negative goodwill arising from acquisitions after
1 January 2001 was recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account on a systematic
basis over the remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets;
and

. on disposal of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities or associates, any attributable goodwill
or negative goodwill previously eliminated against or credited to the consolidated capital
reserve at the time of acquisition was written back and included in the calculation of the
gain or loss on disposal.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3:

. the Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from 1 January 2004;

. accumulated amortisation of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and minority
interests, and jointly-controlled entities as at 1 January 2004 has been eliminated with a

corresponding decrease in the respective cost of goodwill at that date;

. from the year ended 31 December 2004 onwards, goodwill is tested annually for impairment,
as well as when there are indications of impairment;
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(continued)

. any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition over the cost of the business
combination is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account. In
addition, following the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, the carrying amounts of the
negative goodwill recognised on the consolidated balance sheet or remained credited to
the consolidated capital reserve as at 1 January 2004 were derecognised by way of a
corresponding adjustment to the opening retained profits as at 1 January 2004; and

. on disposal of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities or associates, any attributable goodwill
previously eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve at the time of acquisition is
transferred to the consolidated retained profits as @ movement in reserves and is not
included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

HKFRS 3 is prospectively applied and the effect of its adoption on these financial statements in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2004 is summarised as follows:

. accumulated amortisation of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and minority
interests, and jointly-controlled entities as at 1 January 2004 of HK$36,822,000 and
HK$10,079,000, respectively, have been eliminated with a corresponding decrease in the
respective cost of goodwill at that date;

. the carrying amounts of the negative goodwill recognised on the consolidated balance
sheet and remained credited to the consolidated capital reserve as at 1 January 2004 of
HK$7,547,000 and HK$657,924,000, respectively, were derecognised by way of a
corresponding adjustment to the opening retained profits and minority interests as at
1 January 2004 of HK$663,614,000 and HK$1,857,000, respectively;

. the excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of those companies acquired by the Group during the year over cost of
business combinations in an aggregate amount of HK$35,767,000 was fully recognised as
income for the year ended 31 December 2004; and

. in respect of disposal of a jointly-controlled entity and an associate during the year, the
attributable goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve at the
respective time of their acquisition of HK$40,757,000 and HK$74,167,000, respectively,
were transferred to the consolidated retained profits as a movement in reserves and is not
included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

21 December 2004

2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(e) The adoption of HKFRS 5, which has resulted in a change in accounting policy on the recognition
of a discontinued operation. Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 5, the Group would have previously
recognised a discontinued operation at the earlier of when:

. the Group enters into a binding sale agreement; and
. the board of directors have approved and announced a formal disposal plan.

HKFRS 5 now requires an operation to be classified as discontinued when the criteria to be
classified as held for sale have been met or the Group has disposed of the operation. Held for
sale is when the carrying amount of an operation will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and not through continuing use. The result of this change in accounting policy is that
a discontinued operation is recognised by the Group at a later point than the accounting policy
previously adopted due to the recognition criteria being stricter under HKFRS 5.

(f)  The adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 has resulted in a change in accounting policy for
recognition, measurement, derecognition and disclosure of financial instruments.

Until 31 December 2003, investments of the Group were classified into long term investments
and short term investments, which were stated in the balance sheet at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and at fair value, respectively, and any impairment losses on long term
investments and changes in fair value of the short term investments were recognised in the profit
and loss account in the period in which they arise.

In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 39, the investments have been classified into available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments were held. As a result of the adoption of
HKAS 39, all the investments are now stated at fair value in the balance sheet, except for certain
available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, when they are measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. In addition, all the investments as at 31 December 2003 that should be
measured at fair value on adoption of HKAS 39 should be remeasured at 1 January 2004 and
any adjustment of the previous carrying amount should be recognised as an adjustment of the
balance of retained profits at 1 January 2004.

In agcordance with the provisions of HKAS 32, the terms of a non-derivative financial instrument

are evaluated to determine whether it contains both a liability and an equity component and shall
be classified separately as a financial liability or an equity instrument, respectively.
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31 December 2004

2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(f)  (continued)

The effect of the changes in accounting policies on these financial statements as a result of the
adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 is summarised as follows:

. all long term investments of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2003 were
redesignated into available-for-sale financial assets on 1 January 2004. The aggregate
differences between the respective carrying value of each investment as at 31 December
2003 and the respective fair value at 1 January 2004 is insignificant and hence, no
adjustment has been made against the retained profits at 1 January 2004;

. all short term investments of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2003 were
redesignated into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on 1 January 2004.
There is no effect on remeasurement as the accounting policy on measurement of the
Group's short term investments as at 31 December 2003 is the same as that for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and

. the equity component of the convertible notes of the Group issued by Beijing Yanjing
Brewery Company Limited (“Yanjing Brewery”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is not material and the whole amount of the convertible notes is accounted for
as a financial liability of the Group.

(g) The adoption of SSAP-Int 24 has resulted in a change in accounting policy for the recognition of
revenue arising from pre-completion contracts for the sale of development properties.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP-Int 24, the estimated profit on pre-sold properties under development
was recognised over the course of development of the properties after execution of the formal
sale and purchase agreement. The amount of estimated profit was calculated based on the
proportion of construction costs incurred over the total estimated construction costs to completion,
after making due allowances for contingencies, and limited to non-refundable cash deposits
received. In addition, properties under development which have been pre-sold were stated at
cost plus estimated attributable profits less foreseeable losses and sales deposits received.

In accordance with the provisions of SSAP-Int 24, revenue arising from pre-completion contracts
for the sale of development properties that do not fall within the scope of HKAS 11 "Construction
Contracts” is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the properties under development
sold. Such properties are stated at cost.
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(g) (continued)

There is no impact on these financial statements on the adoption of this interpretation as the
Group did not have any pre-sold properties under development during the years ended
31 December 2004 and 2003.

(h)  HKAS 24 affects the identification of related parties and the disclosure of related party transactions.

0 HKAS 1, 2,7, 8,10, 11, 12, 14, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23, 27, 28, 31, 33, 34, 37, HKAS-Int 10, 13, 15,
21, 27, 29 and HKFRS-Int 4 did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies. In summary:

. HKAS 1 affects certain presentation in the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated profit
and loss account and consolidated statement of changes in equity, including the following:

- investment properties, which were previously included in fixed assets, are now
presented separately on the face of the balance sheet;

- taxes of jointly-controlled entities and associates attributable to the Group, which
were previously included in the tax charge on the consolidated profit and loss
account, are now included in the share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled
entities and associates, respectively; and

- minority interests are now included in the equity section of the balance sheet.

. HKAS 8, 21, 28 and 31 affect certain disclosures of the financial statements.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the periodic remeasurement of hotel and investment properties, and financial assets that
have been measured at fair value, as further explained below.
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31 December 2004

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2004: The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred out of the Group. Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated
financial statements include the results for the part of the reporting year during which the Group has
control.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group, including unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions, have been eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company's subsidiaries. '

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company, other than a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued share capital or controls the composition
of its board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate entity in
which the Croup and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any
distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Joint venture companies (continued)
A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group/Company has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral control, but has joint
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

()  an associate, if the Group/Company does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint venture company's registered capital and is in
a position to exercise significant influence over the joint venture company; or

(d) an available-for-sale financial asset, if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of
the joint venture company’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position
to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture company.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which is subject to joint control, resulting in none
of the participating parties having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled
entity.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where the profit
sharing ratio is different to the Group's equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the
jointly-controlled entities is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio. The Group's interests
in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net
assets urider the equity method of accounting, less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities, which was not previously eliminated against the
consolidated capital reserve, is included as part of the Croup’s interests in jointly-controlled entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the Company's profit and loss account to the

extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in jointly-controlled entities are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.

The Croup’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different
to the Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the associates is determined
based on the agreed profit sharing ratio. The Group's interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of associates, which was not previously
eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve, is included as part of the Group's interests in
associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company's profit and loss account to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's interests in associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Business combinations

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates is initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset and in the case
of jointly-controlled entities and associates, the goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof,
rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill on acquisitions after 1 January 2004 is not amortised and goodwill already carried in the
consolidated balance sheet is not amortised after 1 January 2004. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.
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Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, to which the goodwill relates. Where recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit are
disposed iof, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before 1 January 2001 was eliminated against the consolidated capital
reserve in the year of acquisition. The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that
permitted such goodwill to remain eliminated against the consolidated capital reserve and that required
such goodwill not to be recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the Group
disposes of all or part of the business to which that goodwill relates or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates become impaired.

Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the entity being acquired over cost

On acquisition of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates, if the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity being acquired
recognised as at the date of acquisition exceeds the cost of the business combination, the Group shall
reassess the identification and measurement of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of that entity and the measurement of the cost of the business combination; and recognise immediately
in consolidated profit and loss account any excess remaining after that reassessment.

Negative goodwill (applicable to the accounting year ended 31 December 2003)

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates
represents the excess of the Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be measured reliably, but which do not represent
identifiable liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised as
income in the consolidated profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised.
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Business combinations (continued)

Negative goodwill (applicable to the accounting year ended 31 December 2003) (continued)

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable expected future losses and expenses
as at the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
on a systematic basis over the remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable
assets. The amount of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary
assets is recognised as income immediately.

In the case of jointly-controlled entities and associates, any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a
separately identified item on the consclidated balance sheet.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 "Business Combinations” in 2001, negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions was credited to the consolidated capital reserve in the year of acquisition. On the adoption
of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional provisions of the SSAP that permitted such negative
goodwill to remain credited to the consolidated capital reserve. Negative goodwill on acquisitions
subsequent to the adoption of the SSAP is treated according to the SSAP 30 negative goodwill accounting
palicy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities or associates, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of
negative goodwill which has not been recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and any
relevant reserves, as appropriate. Any attributable negative goodwill previously credited to the consolidated
capital reserve at the time of acquisition is written back and included in the calculation of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment of
any asset, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset
in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset. Any impairment losses made
against goodwill is not reversed.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Hotel properties

Hotel properties are interests in hotel buildings and their integral fixed plant which is collectively used in
the operation of the hotels. Following initial recognition at cost, hotel properties are carried at a
revalued amount which is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation on such properties and accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined by
reference to their open market values on the basis of annual professional valuations performed at the
end of each financial year. Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the hotel properties and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the respective hotel property.

Changes in the carrying amount of hotel properties as a result of a revaluation are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property revaluation reserve. If this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the deficit previously
charged.

Depreciation of hotel properties is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the valuation of each
hotel property over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 40 years.

On derecognition of a hotel property, the relevant portion of the hotel property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and
loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation of the expressway and related structures is calculated on the unit of usage basis whereby
the annual depreciation amount is determined based on the actual traffic volume for the year to the
projected total traffic volume of the expressway over the remaining unexpired lease terms.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
asset, less its estimated residual value, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold buildings 2% to 10%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5-10 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 5% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 20%

Motor vehicles 10% to 20%

An item of fixed asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is
included in the profit and loss account in the period the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction, installation and testing as well as capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of construction or installation. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed assets or investment properties when
completed and ready for use.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which construction work and
development have been completed and which are owned by the Group or held by the Group under
finance leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Such properties are not depreciated,
and are measured initially at cost including all transaction costs and, after initial recognition, carried at
fair values, being their open market values on the basis of annual professional valuations performed at
the end of each financial year.

Changes in the fair values of investment properties are recognised in the profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The gain or loss
arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property, calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property, is recognised in the profit
and loss account in the period of the retirement or disposal.

Lease premium for land
Leasehold land premiums are lump sum upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Lease premium for land relating to buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on the straight-line basis to the profit and loss account. Leasehold premium for land
relating to investment properties and properties developed for sale are not amortised and included as
part of the cost of such properties.

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties developed for sale and are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the lease premium for land and cost of land/land use
rights together with any other direct costs attributable to the development of the properties, borrowing
costs and professional fees capitalised during the development period,

Properties under development which are expected to be completed within 12 months from the balance
sheet date are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all
development expenditure, applicable borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to such properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to prevailing market prices on an individual property
basis.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and from a business acquisition are capitalised
at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to the
class of intangible assets. Intangible assets, excluding development costs, created within the business
are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Useful lives of acquired intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are stated at cost and not amortised.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Useful lives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made
on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of the intangible asset, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset, is
recognised in the profit and loss account in the period the intangible asset is derecognised.

Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent the rights to operate a water treatment plant and a toll road and to sell
entrance tickets in a scenic area, and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over the period of
the operating concessions granted to the Group.

Management information systems

Management information systems are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 years.

Licences

Licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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Intangible assets (continued)
Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and deferred only when the
projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects are technically feasible; and the products have commercial
value. Product development expenditure which does not meet this criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products, subject to a maximum of 20 years, commencing from the date when the products
are put into commercial production.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
l.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in listed and unlisted equity securities which are
intended to be held for a continuing strategic or long term purpose and are stated at fair value, except
for those equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, when they are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.
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Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair value, the gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of an investment are dealt with as movements in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investment is sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss derived from the investment recognised
in the investment revaluation reserve, together with the amount of any further impairment, is charged to
the profit and loss account in the period in which the impairment arises.

In respect of available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment, the
carrying amount of the investment should be reduced to the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset and the amount of the
impairment is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises. Any impairment
losses recognised shall not be reversed.

Long term investments (applicable to the accounting year ended 31 December
2003)

Long term investments in listed and unlisted equity securities, intended to be held for a continuing
strategic or long term purpose, are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, on an
individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying amount has occurred, unless there is
evidence that the decline is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced to its fair value,
as estimated by the directors. The amount of the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and events which led to the impairment in
value cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist
for the foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment previously charged is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the amount previously charged.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (previously known as “Short
term investments”)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are investments in listed and unlisted equity securities
held for trading purposes.

Listed securities are stated at their fair values on the basis of their quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, on an individual investment basis. Unlisted securities are stated at their estimated fair
values, on an individual investment basis, as estimated by the directors.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of a security are credited or charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis or weighted average basis, and in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts from variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contract is recognised on the percentage of completion method,
by reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the period plus the related fee earned, measured
by the proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimate total cost of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from customer for contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to customer for contract work.
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Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less allowance for any uncollectible
amounts.

An estimate for doubtful debts for trade and other receivables is made when collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Bank and other borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowings. After initial recognition, bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the liabilities are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

The component of the convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a
liability in the balance sheet, net of issue costs. The corresponding interest on those convertible bonds
is charged as interest expense in the profit and loss account. On the issue of the convertible bonds, the
fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond; and this amount is carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, net of issue costs. The value of the conversion option
is not changed in subsequent years.

issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are
first recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the profit and loss account over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the profit and loss account by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at
the balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the profit and loss account.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain products are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present value
as appropriate.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account
or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses can be utilised:

. except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss
account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
®

(®

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

(i)  controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group;

(i) bhas an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iif)  has joint control over the Group;

the jparty is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is an associate;

the jparty is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to
in (d) or (&); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Foreign currency translation
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (HK$).

The functional currencies of subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates in Mainland China and
overseas are measured using Renminbi (RMB) and the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates, respectively. On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of these overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
and, their profit and loss accounts are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The exchange differences arising on the retranslation are taken directly to the exchange translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in the exchange
translation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated profit

and loss account.
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Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences
are taken to the profit and loss account with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings
that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to the
exchange translation reserve until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised
in the profit and loss account. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
borrowings are also dealt with in the exchange translation reserve. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of
initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods and pre-sale of properties under development, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains

neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods or the properties sold;

(b) toll revenue, rental and hotel income, on an accrual basis;
(c) from the sale of completed properties, upon execution of the sale agreements;

(d) from construction contracts, on the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

(e) from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered;

(f)  interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable;

(g) from the trading of listed or unlisted investments, on the trade dates; and
(h)  other investment income, when the right to receive payment has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’'s memorandum

and articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet date
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the year by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’'s employees have completed the required number of years of service to the
Croup in order to be eligible for long service payments under the Employment Ordinance in the event
of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to be made.
The provision is based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned
by the employees from their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

Pension costs

The Group has joined a number of defined contribution pension schemes organised by certain PRC
provincial or municipal governments for certain of its employees, the assets of which are held separately
from those of the Group. Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable, in accordance with the
rules of the pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once made.

For those employees that have not yet joined a pension scheme, the Group has accrued for the
estimated future pension costs based on a percentage of their salaries. The related assets for the
purpose of discharging such liabilities are not separately held from those of the Group.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Equity corpensation benefits

The Company, Beijing Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“Beijing Development”) and Xteam Software
International Limited (“Xteam”), each operates a share option scheme for the granting of non-transferable
options, for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards, to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the operations of the Group, the Beijing Development group and the Xteam group,
respectively.

The cost of share options granted with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company, Beijing Development
and Xteam ("market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors
of the Group at that date, based on the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of
the transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Equity compensation benefits (continued)

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of the share options
granted under the share option schemes and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards
granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on or before 31 December 2003.

Upon the exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company, Beijing
Development or Xteam as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company, Beijing
Development or Xteam in the respective share premium account. Options which are cancelled prior to
their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Segment information

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately, according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business segments. Particulars of the business
segments are summarised as follows:

(a) the brewery operations segment produces, distributes and sells brewery products;

(b) the retail operations segment operates department stores in Beijing and certain other cities in the
PRC:

{c) the dairy operations segment produces, distributes and sells dairy products (discontinued during
the year — note 11);

(d) the expressway and toll road operations segment engages in the operation of the Capital Airport
Expressway, which connects the Capital Airport and the city centre of Beijing, and the Shenzhen

Shiguan Road and Bridge, which is located at Shenzhen Municipality, the PRC;

(e) the water treatment operations segment operates a water treatment plant in Beijing and sells
purified water;
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Segment information (continued)

®

8

(b

®

the hotel operations segment engages in the operation of hotels in Beijing and Wuxian, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, to provide hotel services;

the ttourism operations segment engages in the provision of tourism services in Badaling Great
Wall and Longgqingxia, scenic areas in Beijing;

the property construction and development segment constructs and develops properties for sale;

the telecommunications and IT related services and products segment comprises the production
and sale of telecommunication products through a then associate, Siemens Communication
Networks Ltd., Beijing (“Beijing Siemens”, previously known as "Beijing International Switching
System Co., Ltd."), and other IT projects including the construction of broadband infrastructure,
the jprovision of Internet services and IT technical support and consultation services;

the geothermal energy systems segment constructs geothermal energy systems and provides
related installation services; and

the corporate and others segment comprises production, distribution and sale of wine and
processed food products, restaurant operations, property investments and corporate income and
expense items.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on
the location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
assets.
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4. Segment information (continved)

(a) Business segments
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure
information for the Group's business segments for 2004:

2004
Group
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Telecom-
munications
Expressway Property and
and Water construction 17 related Geothermal
Brewery Retail  toll road treatment Hotel  Tourism and services and energy  Corporate Dairy
operations operations operations operations operations operations development  products  systems and others Total operations Eliminations Consolidated

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSD00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

Segment revenue:
Sales to exeml

customers 3,494,029 3,021,404  4353N 490,566 1,243 - 294226 436,399 230,693 376025 8,779,956 885684 - 9,665,640
Intersegment scles - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other revenue 100,660 44,436 {1,815) - 16 - 4,564 1,942 23,917 44,080 217,800 16,498 - 234298
Total 3,594,689 3,065840 433,536 490,566 1,259 - 298790 438341 254,610 420,105 8,997756 902,182 - 9,899,938
Segment resuls 405008 130100 262327 194297 (523} - (BR666) 8529 57690  (136731) 909,031  (108,744) 800,267
Inierest income 43,708 1,043 44,751
Unallocated evenue

and gains 126,342 2,139 128,481
Unallocated expenses (48,870) - {48,870)

Profit/(loss) from

operating activities 1,030,211 (105,552) 324,648
Finance costs {130,338)  (7N0) (138,048)
Share of profits and

losses of:

Jointly-controlled

entities (5,799) 17,647 - - 35,51 9,289 - (116} - n,1 67,714 (11,261) 56,453

Associates 11,586 - - - - - - 19,887 - 19,692 51,175 - Nn

Amortisation of
goodwil arising on

acquisition of
jointly-controlled
entities - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 1018762 (124,533} 894,229
Tax (233,156) 3,687 (229,469)
Profit/(toss) for the year 785,606  (120,846) 664,760
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 571,89 (68,704) 503,188
Minority interests W3NE (52,142} 161,572
785,606 {120,846} 664,760
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4. Segment information (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

2004 (continued)

Group
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Telecom-
munications
Expressway Property and
and Water construction 1T related Geothermal
Brewery Retail  toll road treatment Hotel  Tourism and services and energy  Corporate Dairy
operations operations operations operations operations operations development  products  systems and others Total ~operations Eliminations Consolidated
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Segment assets 6,201,523 2,955,555 2,215978 1,358,356 - - 646950 667,849 409,847 7,062,469 21518527 1,153,079 (4,938,888) 17,732,718

Share of et assets of:
Jointly-controtled
entities - 225,401 - - {15643} 297,781 - 43,585 - 40,705 591,829 125,113 - 118,942
Associates 335,376 20,406 - - - - 2,610 140 - mim 550,310 - - 550,310

6,536,899 3,201,362 2215978 1358356  (15,643) 297781 669,560 711,574 409,847 7,274,952 22,660,666 1,276,192 (4,938,888) 18,999,970

Unallocated assets 48,1m 26,541 - Aaum
Total assets 23,078,838 1,304,733 (4,938,888) 19,444,683
Segment labilities 1,464,257 979,599 439,043 266,104 - - 692,894 139,369 110,822 3444926 7537014 230,763 (4,938,888) 2,828,889
Unallocered habities 4,751,565 263,032 - 5,014,597
Total liabilities 12,288,579 493,795 (4,938,888) 7,843,486

Oiher segment

informaion:
Depreciation 337,957 91,923 48,866 i) - - 18,628 3,887 592 16,512 528,439 64,546 - 592,985
Amortisation of
intangible assets - - 3071 70,656 - - - 1,263 1,058 - 104,688 - - 104,688
Impaimient losses on:
Segment assets - - - - - - 1,016 - - 28,370 29,386 17512 - 46,898
Unallocated assets 43,300
Capital expendituze 649,621 242,801 8,809 - - - 2,848 40,629 1,191 35,909 982,414 92,393 - 1,074,807

72  Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

4. Segment information (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure
information for the Group's business segments for 2003:

2003
Group
Discontinyed
Continung operations operations
Telecom-
munications
Expressway Property and
and Water construction [T related  Geothermal
Brewery Retal  tollvoad  treatment Hotel  Tourism and - services and energy  Corporate Dairy
operations  operations  gperations  operations  operations  operaions development  products  systems  and athers Toial  operations  Eliminations Consolidated
HKS000  HKSD00  HKE000  HKS000  EX$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000
{Restated) (Restated)  (Restated) (Resiated) (Resiated)  (Restaied)  (Restated) (Resiated)
Segment revene:
Sales 1o external
customers 2880337 2,184,964 361,443 414561 2,095 - 248,545 386,665 180,521 297203 6966336 1003811 - 7970147
Intersegment sales - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Gther revenue BAO A0 15 - - S sET 1002 140 136865 242076 46303 - 2885M
Total 2915737 2226434 363088 41456] 2,095 - 254192 396686 201,941 433868 7208612 1050114 - 8258726
Segment results 333,709 65260 203015 151262 346 - 19,516 68,487 48,955 9,487 800,047 13,356 914,003
lnterest income 36,506 2092 38,598
Unallocated revenue
and gaing 19,788 - 19,788
Unallocated expenses (46,577 - {46,577)
Profit from operating
activities 908,764 16,048 925,812
Finance costs (125762)  (24,608) (150,370)
Share of prafits and
losses of:
Jointly-controlled
entities (60) 17118 - - (12,746) 2,044 - (230) - 4844 10,970 1,989 12,959
Associates (720) 19 - - - - - ua ST a0 (802 3335
Amortisation of
gooduwill arising on
acquisition of
jointly-contiolled
enities 68 () - - - - - - - (BE9 (46%9) - (4,699)
Profitf{loss) before tax B31,653  (14,595) 817,058
Tax (9617 6810 (189,361)
Profit/oss) for the year 635,482 (7783) 527,697
Attibutable to:
Equity holders of the parent 449,204 841 450,045
Minority interests 186,278 (8626) 177,652
635482 (7,785) 527,697
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4. Segment information (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

2003 (continued)

Group
Discontinued
Continting cperations operaiions
Telecom-
municatons
Expressway Propery and
and Water constructon [T related  Ceothermal
Brewery Retall  toll oad  treatment Hotel  Tourism and senvices and energy  Corporate Dairy
operzions  operations  operations  cperations  operetions  opereticns developmemt  procucts  systems  and ofners Totel  operations  Eliminations Consolidated
HKE000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS0CO  HXS'000  HKS'00C  HKS000  HKS000  HK$COO  HKEQOO  HKY0OD  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Segment assets 5709792 2472515 2144147 1,166,439 27,989 ~ 113198 628786 3208% 6337380 19930042 1098317 (4,683,095) 16345264

Share of net assets of:
Jointly-controlled
entities 89,756 356,933 - - 124,153 285,397 - 21,533 - PEREL] 907562 138,099 - 104566}
Associates 10,010 16,231 - - - - 22510 195,858 - 152,503 397,224 2230 - 419544

50809558 2845681 2144147 1166439 152,142 285397 1135768 846187 320836 5519673 21234828 1258735 (4683,095) 17810469

Unallocéted assets 360,395 22,892 - 383287
Total assets 21595225 1,281,628 (4,683,095) 18,193,756
Segment liabilies 1374927 488590 455,138 34479 32,741 - 1,000,507 171,665 59926 3018870 6,947.164 173301 (4,683,095 2437370
Unzllocated liabiliies 4455976 208862 - 4664840
Toial fizbilkies 11,403,142 382,163 (4,683,095) 7,102,210
Other segment
information:
Depreciation,
s festated 301,586 59,738 44137 85 1367 - 20,277 7978 2214 31998 469,780 60,170 - 525550
Amordisation:
Goddwill/(negative
goodwill), net 225 70 1178 - - - - 7585 1395 5,630 18,945 (4264) - 14,681
ntangible assets - - 30,711 70,656 - - - 1917 704 - 103,988 - - 103988
{mpaifment losses on:
Segment assets - - - - - - - - - 18,425 18425 9421 - 27847
Unallocated assets 46,577
Capital
expenditure,
3 restated 537,858 51,648 2626 - 30 - 5293 27,943 £214 50,608 680,200 93,135 - 773335
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4. Segment information (continued)

(b) Geographical segments
The following table presents revenue, and certain asset and expenditure information for the
Group's geographical segments:

Group
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Eliminations Consolidated

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 1004 2003 2004 2003
HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKE000

(Restated) (Restated)
Segment revenue:
Sales 10 external customers 34,742 10,720 9,485,907 7799291 184,991 160,136 - - 9,665,640 7970147
ntersegment sales 10,367 12918 - - 38,731 27575 (49,098)  (40,493) - -
QOther revenue 12,660 7598 221,638 280287 - 694 - - 134,298 288579
Total 57,769 31236 9,667,545 8079578 223,122 188405  (49,098)  (40,493) 9,899,938 8258726
Other segment information:
Segment assets 5,892,477 5131231 16,713,069 15825713 66,060 71,415 (4,938,888) (4,683,095) 17,732,718 16,345,264
Share of net assets of:
Jointly-contralled entities 58 63 716,884 1,045,598 - - - - 716942 1,045,661
Associates - {357) 550,310 419,901 - - - - 550,310 419544
5,892,535 5,130,937 17,980,263 17291212 66,060 71,415 (4,938,888) (4,583,095) 18,999,970 17,810,469
Unallocated assets 444,113 383287
Total assets 19,444,683 18,193,756
{apital expenditure 8 916 1,072,045 757056 1754 15,363 - - 1004807 773335
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Turnover, other revenue and gains, net

Turnover represents: (1) the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax,
consumption tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for goods returned and trade discounts;
(2) the aggregate of revenue from hotel operations, toll revenue and the value of services rendered,
net of business and consumption taxes and government surcharges; (3) an appropriate proportion of
contract revenue of construction contracts, net of value-added tax, business tax and government

surcharges; and (4) rental income.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, other revenue and gains, net is as follows:

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover
Brewery operations 3,494,029 2,880,337
Retail operations 3,021,404 2,184,964
Expressway and toll road operations 435,371 361,445
Water treatment operations 490,566 414,561
Hotel operations 1,243 2,095
Property construction and development 294,226 248,545
Telecommunications and IT related services
and products 436,399 386,665
Geothermal energy systems and related
installation services 230,693 190,521
Corporate and others 376,025 297,203
Continuing operations 8,779,956 6,966,336
Discontinued operations — Dairy operations 885,684 1,003,811
9,665,640 7,970,147
Other revenue
Compensation income 7,492 13,897
Rental income 37,452 28,406
Service income 1,013 3,240
Investment income 3,053 7,429
Government grants* 66,788 51,471
Sale of raw materials 15,117 17,141
Indemnification from a related company recognised — note 49 19,500 21,949
Others 51,370 36,583
201,785 180,116
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Turnover, other revenue and gains, net (continued)

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gains, net
Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the investees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost recognised as income 35,767 -
Negative goodwill recognised as income — note 19 -~ 10,414
Gain on disposal of fixed assets, net - 8,948
Gain on disposal of investment properties 238 -
Gain on deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries** 20,715 96,530
Gain on partial disposal of interest in a jointly-controlled entity - 779
Gain on disposal of interests in associates*** 96,766 -
Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 369 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 6,298 -
Gain on disposal of long term investments - 8,008
Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss 841 -
Gain on disposal of short term investments - 1,227
Unrealised gain on revaluation of short term investments, net - 2,345
160,994 128,251
Other revenue and gains, net 362,779 308,367

Kk

*xx

Government grants represented government subsidies, corporate income tax and turnover tax refunds. Turnover tax
includes value-added tax, city construction tax and education surcharge. The government grants are unconditional, except
for certain grants must be utilised for the development of the Company's subsidiaries,

The gain on deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004 mainly
arose from the dilution of the Group's interest in Beijing Yanjing Brewery Company Limited ("Yanjing Brewery"), an
indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, from 55.45% to 54.86% upon the exercise of convertible bonds of Yanjing
Brewery by certain bondholders in exchange for ordinary shares of Yanjing Brewery.

The gain on deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries recognised during the year ended 31 December 2003 mainly
arose from the dilution of the Croup's interest in Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co., Ltd. ("Sanyuan Foods"), an indirectly held
subsidiary of the Company, from 74.77% to 57.11% upon the issuance of 150,000,000 new ordinary shares of RMB1
each by Sanyuan Foods in September 2003 to the public at a subscription price of RMB2.6 each in connection with its
initial public offering for listing of its shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The gain on disposal of interests in associates recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004 mainly arose from
the disposal of 20% equity interest in Beijing Siemens to a joint venture partner of Beijing Siemens in April 2004.
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6. Profit from operating activities

The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Cost of inventories sold 6,123,409 5,005,021
Cost of properties sold 336,525 115,015
Cost of services provided 546,000 569,232
Depreciation 15 592,985 529,550
Amortisation of operating concessions* 18 101,367 101,367
Amortisation of management information systems* 18 1,886 1,886
Amortisation of licences* 18 1,435 735
Research and development expenditure:
Current year expenditure 14,890 11,089
Less: Capitalised in deferred development costs 18 (3,642) (2,164)
11,248 8,925
Impairment arising during the year** 18 - 13,294
11,248 22,219
Goodwill: 19
Amortisation for the year** - 20,396
Impairment arising during the year** 17,512 7,488
17,512 27,884
Impairment of fixed assets** 15 29,386 -
Impairment of interest in an associate™* - 7,065
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets** 44,300 -
Impairment of long term investments** - 46,577
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets, net*** 14,370 (8,948)
Loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries 6,433 -
Loss on deemed disposal of interest
in a jointly-controlled entity 680 -
Unrealised loss on revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, net 4,570 -
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
of land and buildings 131,584 103,703
Amortisation of lease premium for land 17 9,693 8,682
Auditors’ remuneration 7,474 7.350
Provision against an amount due from an associate 474 -
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 34,855 18,865
Provision for doubtful other receivables 60,300 17,855
Provision for inventories 3,183 2,282

78  Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

Profit from operating activities (continued)

2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Staff costs (excluding directors' remuneration — note 8):
Wages, salaries and staff welfare 642,307 597,562
Net pension scheme contributions 50,528 68,173
692,835 665,735
Exchange losses, net 1,094 1,235
Net rental income (33,753) (27,030)
Investment income:
Listed (1,116) -
Unlisted {1,937) (7,429)
* The amortisation of operating concessions, management information systems and licences for the year are included in
“Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.
ok The amortisation of goodwill for the year and the impairments of deferred development costs, goodwill, fixed assets,

interest in an associate, available-for-sale financial assets and long term investments for the year are included in “Other
operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

R Included in the proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets are compensations of HK$17,237,000 (2003: HK$10,406,000)
in aggregate received from third parties for those fixed assets that were lost or given up.

Finance costs

Group

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest on convertible bonds 7,193 7,913
Interest on bank loans and other loans wholly

repayable within five years 123,744 134,153

Interest on other loans 8,215 9,108

Total finance costs 139,152 151,174

Less: Interest capitalised in fixed assets (1,104) (804)

138,048 150,370
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8. Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees:
Executive directors 640 -
Non-executive director - 40
Independent non-executive directors 540 240
1,180 280
Other emoluments for executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,103 5,596
Pension scheme contributions 260 163
5,363 5,759
6,543 6,039
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors were as follows:
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Ambrose 100 80
Mr. Lee Tung Hai, Leo 120 80
Mr. Wang Xian Zhang 120 80
Mr. Wu Jie Si 100 -
Mr. Robert A. Theleen 100 -
540 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the
year (2003: Nil).
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31 December 2004

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK%'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2004
Executive directors:
Mr. Yi Xi Qun - 2,274 97 2,371
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai - 1,513 88 1,601
Mr. Li Fu Cheng 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Ying Ming 80 - - 80
Mr. Liu Kai ~ 1,316 75 1,391
Mr. Zheng Wan He 80 - - 80
Mr. Guo Pu Jin 80 - - 80
Mr. Li Man 80 - - 80
Mr. Bao Zong Ye 80 - - 80
Mr. Wei En Hong 80 - - 80
Mr. Bi Yu Xi - - - -
Mr. Li Zhong Gen 80 - - 80
640 5,103 260 6,003
Non-executive director:
Mr. Fang Fang - - - -
640 5,103 260 6,003
2003
Executive directors:
Mr. Yi Xi Qun - 604 - 604
Mr. Hu Zhao Guang - 1,283 - 1,283
Mr. Zhang Hong Hai - - - -
Mr. Xiong Da Xin - 1,832 88 1,920
Mr. Li Fu Cheng - 83 - 83
Mr. Guo Ying Ming - - - ~
Mr. Liu Kai - 1,296 75 1,371
Mr. Zheng Wan He - 83 - 83
Mr. Li Man - 83 - 83
Mr. Bao Zong Ye - - - -
Mr. Xing Chun Hua - 83 - 83
Mr. Wei En Hong - 83 - 83
Mr. Bi Yu Xi - 83 - 83
Mr. Li Zhong Gen - 83 - 83
- 5,596 163 5,759
Non-executive director:
Mr. Fang Fang 40 - - 40
40 5,586 163 5,799

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.
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9. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2003: three) directors. Details of the

remuneration of the five highest paid employees for the year are set out below:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,887 6,795
Pension s¢heme contributions 342 187
8,229 6,982

The number of the five highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:
2004 2003
Number of Number of
employees employees
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 4
HK$1,500,001 — HK$§2,000,000 2 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 1 -~
5 5
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10. Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The income tax provision in respect of operations
in Mainland China and overseas is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable
profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group
2004 2003
HK$000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Continuing operations:
Current — PRC
Hong Kong 712 571
Mainland China 239,301 189,875
Current — Overseas 486 14
Underprovision in prior years 5 4,499
Deferred — note 39 (7,348) 1,212
Tax charge from continuing operations 233,156 196,171
Discontinued operations:
Current — Mainland China, the PRC 1,693 5,174
Overprovision in prior years - (7,863)
Deferred — note 39 (5.380) (4,121)
Tax charge from discontinued operations — note 11(a) (3,687) (6,810)
Total tax charge for the year 229,469 189,361

In accordance with the presentation requirements of HKAS 1 early adopted by the Group during the
year as detailed in note 2(i) to the financial statements, taxes of jointly-controlled entities and associates
attributable to the Group, which were previously included in tax charge on the consolidated profit and
loss account, are now included in the share of profits and losses of jointly-controlled entities and
associates, respectively. The comparative amounts for the year ended 31 December 2003 have been
restated to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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10. Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the
countries in which the Company and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/
(income) at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax

rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group - 2004
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Total

HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Profit/(loss) before tax (141,952) 1,029,007 1,174 894,229
Tax at the statutory tax rate (28,841) 175 339,573 33.0 2,152 300 316,884 354
Lower tax rate ‘for specific provinces or local authority - - (85686) (8.3)  (1,530) (21.3) (87,216) (9.8)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods - - 5 - - - 5 -
Income not subject to tax (12,220) 8.6 (106,398) (10.3) (86) (1.2) (118,704) (13.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax 27,608 (19.4) 19,179 1.9 307 43 47094 53
Tax losses notrecognised as deferred tax assets 10,387 (7.3) 66,004 6.4 764 106 77155 86
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (6) - (4,622) (0.4)  (1,121) (15.6)  (5749) (0.6)
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 928  (0.6) 228,055 22.3 486 6.8 229,469 25.6
Group — 2003

Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas Total
HK$000 %  HK$OOD %  HKS000 %  HKS'00D %
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

Profit/(loss) before tax (163,369) 983,916 (3,389) 817,058
Tax at the statutory tax rate (28,589) 175 324659 330 (1,016) 300 295054 36.1
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or local authority - - (ns5528) (11.7) (703) 207 (116,229) (142)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods (581) 03 (2,632)  (0.3) (151) 44 (3,364) (04
Income not subject to tax (5528) 34 (82,173) (84) (332) 98  (88,033) (10.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax 20904 (12.8) 16,791 1.7 977 (28.8) 38672 47
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets 13,785  (84) 51976 5.3 1,191 (35.1) 66952 82
Tax losses utilised from previous periods - - (3,588) (0.4) (103) 30 (3,691) (05)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's effective rate (9) - 189,507 192 (137) 40 189,361 231

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC, certain of the Company's subsidiaries

enjoy income tax exemptions and reductions.

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




11,

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

Discontinued operations

On 6 December 2004, the Company publicly announced that it has entered into two separate share
transfer agreements on 3 December 2004 with 3t R =T &£ BER FEF 2 & ("San Yuan Group”), a
related company, and BHL, the ultimate holding company, to conditionally dispose of all its interests in
Beijing Enterprises (Dairy) Limited (“BE Dairy"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as to
65.46% and 34.54% to San Yuan Group and BHL at a consideration of RMB323.6 million (approximately
HK$304.9 million) and RMB237.4 million (approximately HK$223.6 million), respectively. The disposal
transactions are subject to approval by shareholders of the Company and certain government authorities
in the PRC.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the disposal transactions were approved by the shareholders of
the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on 7 January 2005, while the approval from
certain government authorities in the PRC are yet to be obtained as at the date of approval of these
financial statements. In the opinion of the directors, the completion of the disposal transactions is due
to be completed in the year ending 31 December 2005.

The major asset of BE Dairy is its 55% equity interest in Sanyuan Foods, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and principally engaged in the production and sale of dairy
products in Mainland China. Dairy operation represents a separate business segment of the Group and
was solely undertaken by Sanyuan Foods. As at 31 December 2004, Sanyuan Foods was classified as a
disposal group and was held for sale.

(a) The results of the discontinued operations for the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 are
summarised as follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover 885,684 1,003,811
Expenses (1,010,217) (1,018,406
Loss before tax from discontinued operations (124,533) (14,595
Tax , 3,687 6,810
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations (120,846) (7,785
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11. Discontinued operations (continued)

(b)  The major classes of assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as at 31 December 2004 are as follows:

Notes 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets:
Fixed assets 15 665,406 -
Investment properties 16 2,420 -
Lease premium for land 17 60,950 -
Goodwill 19 2,196 -
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 125,113 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 22,892 -
Inventories 85,280 -
Trade and bills receivables 120,424 -
Other receivables 81,650 -
Taxes recoverable 3,649 -
Pledged bank balances 156 -
Cash and cash equivalents 134,597 -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 1,304,733 -
Liabilities:
Trade and bills payables (64,171) -
Other payables and accruals (166,592) -
Bank and other borrowings (262,281) -
Deferred tax liabilities (751) -
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale (493,795) -
Net assets attributable to the discontinued operations 810,938 -
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Discontinued operations (continued)

(c) The net cash flows of the discontinued operations for the years ended 31 December 2004 and
2003 are as follows:

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 41,910 18,904

Net cash outflow from investing activities (47,014) (106,172)

Net cash inflow from financing activities 7,183 111,426

Net cash inflow incurred by the discontinued operations 2,079 24,158

(d) Loss per share from discontinued operations

Basic from discontinued operations (HKs$0.11) -
Diluted from discontinued operations N/A N/A

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent

The profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent for the year ended 31 December
2004 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company, was HK$383,143,000 (2003:
HK$50,109,000) (note 35(b)).

Dividends
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim — HK$0.10 (2003: HK$0.10) per ordinary share 62,250 62,250
Proposed final ~ HK$0.20 (2003: HK$0.18) per ordinary share 124,500 112,050
186,750 174,300

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company's shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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14. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2004 is
based on the following data:

Earnings:
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)

(iy  For profit for the year:

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the parent, used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 503,188 450,045

Interest expense for the year relating to the liability
component of the convertible bonds of
Yanjing Brewery, net of current tax 4,819 5,302

Decrease in profit for the year of
Yanjing Brewery attributable to the Group,
as a result of the dilution of interest
in Yanjing Brewery assuming the exercise of all
the outstanding convertible bonds issued by
Yanjing Brewery (14,077) (11,314)

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the parent, used in the diluted earnings per
share calculation 493,930 444,033
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14, Earnings per share (continued)

Earnings: (continued)

(i)  For profit for the year from continuing operations:

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Profit for the year from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic earnings per share calculation 571,892 449,204
Interest expense for the year relating to the liability
component of the convertible bonds of Yanjing
Brewery, net of current tax 4,819 5,302
Decrease in profit for the year of
Yanjing Brewery attributable to the Group,
as a result of the dilution of interest
in Yanjing Brewery assuming the exercise of all
the outstanding convertible bonds issued by
Yanjing Brewery (14,077) (11,314)
Profit for the year from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the parent,
used in the diluted earnings per share calculation 562,634 443,192
Number of ordinary shares:
2004 2003
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations 622,500,000 622,500,000

The exercise of the outstanding share options of the Company and Beijing Development, a subsidiary of
the Company, during the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 did not have a diluting effect on
the Group's basic earnings per share for these years.

The exercise of the outstanding share options of Xteam, a subsidiary of the Company acquired in 2004,

during the year ended 31 December 2004 did not have a diluting effect on the Group’s basic earnings
per share for the year.
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15. Fixed assets

Group
Furniture,
Expressway fixtures
and related  Leasehold  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor Construction Hotel
Notes structures  buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress  properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
{note ()} (notes (q), {note () (note(b))  (note (d))
{0 @)
Cost or valuation:
At T January 2003:
As previously reported 1204937 3165936 319436 3463832 303,053 252,139 593,398 295020 9597751
Effect of adopting HKAS 1
and 17 2(a), (1) - (484,840) - - - - - {277280)  (762,000)
As restated 1204937 2,681,096 319436 3463832 303,053 252,139 593,398 17759 8,835,650
Acquisition of
subsidiaries, as restated 45(a) - 8442 - 17519 2374 1926 87 - 30,348
Additions, as restated - 52,880 23279 174,098 42,652 33,668 442,708 - 769,285
Transfer from construction
in progress - 161,032 2900 282163 9434 2256 (457785) - -
Disposals, as restated - (38,051) (723)  (60,464)  (4215)  (13658)  (21,634) - (138,745)
Reclassifications - 17,392 - 65307 (7951 (3,189) - - -
Exchange realignment - 817 741 - 657 95 - - 2,310
At 31 December 2003 1204937 2883608 345633 3942455 274444 273238 556,774 17759 9,498,848
At 1 January 2004
As previously reported 1204937 3395612 345633 3942455 274444 273238 556774 295220 10,288,313
Effect of adopting HKAS 1
and 17 20), () - (512,004) - - - - - (277461)  (789,465)
As restated 1204937 2,883,608 345633 3942455 274444 273238 556,774 17,759 9,498,848
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) - 258034 28,534 3173965 29,960 18,409 485 - 653,887
Additions - 181913 23363 158,797 47378 31,520 616,194 - 1,059,165
Transfer from construction
in progress 809 155,644 64,397 272,476 28,282 7663 (529.271) - -
Transfer to investment
properties 16 - (65649) - - - - (43793) - (109,442)
Dispasals - (89,649)  (46796)  (55441) (6232) (33306) (25074)  (4,234) (260732)
Atributable to discontinued
operations 1(b) - (350,887) - (566467) - (51887)  (34544)  (13,525) (1,017710)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45(b) - {9,189)  (1,140) (83472 (100)  (2,548) (822) - (97271
At 31 December 2004 1,205,746 2,963,825 413,991 3,986,313 373,732 243,089 540,049 - 9726,745
Analysis of cost or valuation;
At 31 December 2004
At cost 1205746 2963825 413991 3986313 373732 243089 540,049 - 9726745
At 31 December 2003

At cost 1204937 2883608 345633 3942455 274,444 273,238 556,774 - 9,481,089
At valuation - - - - 17759 17759

1,204937 2883608 345633 3942455 274444 273238 556,774 17,759 9,498,848
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Furniture,
Expressway fixtures
and related  Leasehold  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor Construction Hotel
Notes structures  buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress  properties Total
HK§'000 HK000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{note (a))  (notes (g), (note (©) (note(b))  (note (d))
©. (6 )
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
AL T January 2003
As previously reported 111970 535642 248078 144185 141591 117,968 - - 2,597,105
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 2(0) - {75,633) - - - - - - (75,633)
s restated 111970 460009 248078 1441856 141591 117968 - - 254N
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) - 2,930 - 2915 306 3 - - 5,528
Depreciation provided for
the year, as restated 25,633 95,142 44250 298,456 37947 28,122 - - 529,550
Disposals, zs restated - (1025) @y @Iy a3 (13) - - (577
Reclassifications - 5752 - 36,047 (41,613) (186) - - -
Exchange realignment - 109 47 - 248 4 - - 869
At 31 December 2003 137,603 562,917 292324 1737513 136,047 134,943 - - 3001347
AL T January 2004:
As previously reported 137,603 629,202 292324 1737513 136,047 134,943 - - 3067632
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 2(a) - (66,285) - - - - - - (66,285)
As restated 137,603 562,917 292324 1737513 136,047 134943 - - 3001347
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) - 66,552 26,730 174,541 22,292 9,142 - - 299,257
Depreciation provided
for the year 30,068 143,992 26,199 311,168 48,439 33119 - - 592,985
Impairment during the year
recognised in the profit
and loss account - 28,370 - 1016 - - - - 29,386
Disposals - (739 (38315 (49709  (4948)  (23,745) - - (124.456)
Transfer to investment
properties 16 - (49,105) - - - - - - (49,105)
Atributable to discontinued
operations Hb) - (58,415) - (259913) - (33,976) - - (352304)
Disposal of subsidiaries 45(b) - (591 {290) (7,634) (35 (386) - - (8,936)
At 31 December 2004 167,671 685,981 306,648 1,906,982 201,795 119,097 - - 3,388,114
Net book value:
At 31 December 2004 1,038,075 2,277,844 107,343 2,079,331 171,937 123,992 540,049 -~ 633857
At 31 December 2003, as restated 1,067,334 2,320,691 53309 2204542 138,397 138,295 556,774 17758 6,497,501
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15. Fixed assets (continued)

(a) The leasehold buildings, expressway and related structures included above are held under the

following lease terms:

Group
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total
HK$'000 HKE 000 HK$'000
Long term leases 51,580 - 51,580
Medium term leases 8,500 4,109,491 4,117,997
60,080 4,109,491 4,169,571

(b) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the following major projects which remained incomplete as at

31 December 2004:

Group

Expected year

Name of project of completion HK$'000
Wangfujing Beixia 2006 186,750
Brewery production plants 2005 294,344
Other projects Various 58,955

540,049

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

15. Fixed assets (continued)

(c) Certain of the above leasehold buildings, plant and machinery with an aggregate net book value
at the balance sheet date of HK$519,673,000 (2003: HK$183,378,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 36(d)(1)).

(d) At 31 December 2003, the hotel properties were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on the open market income capitalisation basis.

(e) Certain leasehold buildings of the Group and the Company were reclassified from investment
properties during the year ended 31 December 2000 at the then carrying amount of
HK$4 1,000,000, as valued on 31 December 1999 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on the open market value basis. Had the carrying
values of these leasehold buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation,
their carrying values would have been HK$35,304,000 (2003: HK$36,228,000).

() The impairment losses of HK$29,386,000 in aggregate recognised during the year ended
31 December 2004 mainly represent the write-down of certain properties in Hong Kong in the
"Corporate and others” segment to their recoverable amounts upon their being transferred to
investment properties during the year. The recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs
to sell and was determined based on valuations performed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on the open
market value basis using the Direct Comparison Approach.
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15. Fixed assets (continued)

Company
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Leasehold and office Motor  Investment
Note buildings improvements  equipment vehicles  properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost:
At T January 2003:
As previously reported 41,000 9,239 4,608 940 134,000 189,787
Effect of adopting
HKAS 1 2() - - - - (134.000)  (134,000)
As restated 41,000 9,239 4,608 940 - 55,787
Additions 1,319 - 230 1,312 - 2,861
Disposals - - - (196) - (196)
At 37 December 2003 42,319 9,239 4,838 2,056 - 58,452
At 1 January 2004:
As previously reported 42,319 9,239 4,838 2,056 134,000 192,452
Effect of adopting
HKAS | 2() - - - - (134000)  (134,000)
As restated 42,319 8,239 4838 2,056 - 58,452
Additions - 769 516 - - 1,285
At 31 December 2004 42,319 10,008 5,354 2,056 - 59,737
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2003 1,592 9,010 4,004 875 - 15,481
Provided for the year 1,694 119 299 57 - 2,169
Disposals - - - (143) - (143)
At 31 December 2003 3,286 9,129 4,303 789 - 17,507
At 1 January 2004 3,286 9,129 4,303 789 - 17,507
Provided for the year 962 77 262 261 - 1562
At 31 December 2004 4,248 9,206 4,565 1,050 - 19,069
Net book value:
At 31 December 2004 38,071 802 789 1,006 - 40,668
At 31 December 2003,
restated 39,033 110 535 1,267 - 40,945

The Company's leasehold buildings are all situated in Mainland China and held under medium term
leases.
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Group Company
Notes 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At valuation:
At beginning of year:
As previously reported - - - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 1 2() 277,461 277,261 134,000 134,000
As restated 277,461 277,261 134,000 134,000
Transfer from leasehold
buildings 15 16,544 - - -
Transfer from construction
N progress 15 43,793 - - -
Disposals (6,441) - - -
Attributable to discontinued
operations 11(b) (2,420) - - ~
Surplus on revaluation 13,785 200 - -
At end of year, as restated 342,722 277,461 134,000 134,000

(a) Investment properties of the Group as at 31 December 2004 are

held under the following lease

terms:
Group
Hong Kong Eisewhere Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Long term leases 94,325 - 94,325
Medium term leases 6,500 241,897 248,397
100,825 241,897 342,722

The Company's investment properties are all situated in Mainland China and held under medium

term leases.
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16.

Investment properties (continued)

(®)

(©

(d)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 47(a) to the financial statements. The gross rental income
received and receivable by the Group and the Company and related expenses in respect of these
investment properties are summarised as follows:

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross rental income 22,249 15,080 6,598 5,011
Direct expenses (3,700) (1,792) (742) (449)
Net rental income 18,549 13,288 5,856 4,562

Certain of the Group's investment properties with an aggregate net book value at the balance
sheet date of HK$6,500,000 (2003: HK$12,940,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and
other loans granted to the Group (note 36(d)(i)).

At 31 December 2004, the investment properties were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited and CB Richard Ellis Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, on the open
market income capitalisation basis or the open market value basis using the Direct Comparison
Apptoach.
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17. Lease premium for land

Group
Notes 2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
Cost:
At beginning of year:
As previously reported - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 2(a) 512,004 484,840
As restated 512,004 484,840
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) 113,370 15,295
Additions 18,771 31,026
Disposals (28,083) (18,157)
Attributable to discontinued operations 11(b) (79,276) -
Disposal of subsidiaries 45(b) (5,270) -
At end of year 531,516 512,004
Accumulated amortisation:
At beginning of year:
As previously reported - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 2(a) 66,285 75,633
As restated 66,285 75,633
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) 39,002 -
Amortisation for the year 9,693 8,682
Disposals (3,296) (18,030)
Attributable to discontinued operations 11(b) (18,326) -
Disposal of subsidiaries 45(b) (211) -
At end of vear 93,147 66,285
Net book value:
At end of year 438,369 445,719
Portion classified as current assets (8,176) (9,693)
Long term portion 430,193 436,026

The leasehold land of the Group as at 31 December 2004 is held under medium term leases.
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18. Intangible assets

Group
Management Deferred
Operating information development
concessions systems Licences - costs* Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note (a)) (note (b))
Cost:
At 1 January 2003 2,027,321 18,868 - 11,130 2,057,319
Acquisition of a
subsidiary - note 45(a) - - 8,108 - 8,108
Additions - - 1,886 2,164 4,050
At 31 December 2003
and 1 January 2004 2,027,321 18,868 9,994 13,294 2,069,477
Additions - - 12,000 3,642 15,642
At 31 December 2004 2,027,321 18,868 21,994 16,936 2,085,119
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2003 300,534 2,202 - - 302,736
Amortisation provided
for the year 101,367 1,886 735 - 103,588
Impairment during the
year recognised in
the profit and
loss account - - - 13,294 13,294
At 31 December 2003
and 1 January 2004 401,801 4,088 735 13,294 420,018
Amortisation provided
for the year 101,367 1,886 1,435 - 104,688
At 31 December 2004 503,268 5,974 2,170 13,294 524,706
Net book value:
At 31 December 2004 1,524,053 12,894 19,824 3,642 1,560,413
At 31 December 2003 1,625,420 14,780 9,258 - 1,649,459

* internally generated
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18. Intangible assets (continued)

(a) Operating concessions

0,

(i)

Pursuant to a concession agreement dated 13 July 1998 entered into between the Company
and dt = B 2K 2 A (Beijing Municipal Water Company) ("Beijing Water"), the Company
acquired at a consideration of RMB1.5 billion an operating right from Beijing Water to
operate a water purification and treatment plant, No. 9 Phase |, in Beijing and sell purified
water, for a period of 20 years commencing on 24 November 1998. Beijing Water has
guaranteed the Company a net cash inflow of RMB210 million from the water purification
and treatment business for each of the years in the concession period. The concession
right so granted was subsequently transferred by the Company to Beijing Bei Kong Water
Production Co., Ltd., @ wholly owned subsidiary set up by the Company for the purpose of
holding this concession right and engaging in the water purification and treatment business.

As at 31 December 2004, the remaining amortisation period of this operating concession
is 14 years.

Pursuant to a co-operative joint venture agreement dated 18 July 2001 entered into
between Hong Kong Zhong Ji Facility Investment Co., Ltd.,, a 96.5% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and A% T AR ER 27 (Shenzhen Shiguan Road
Company Limited) (“Shiguan Road Limited") for the establishment of Shenzhen Guanshun
Road & Bridge Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Guanshun”), a 53.08% indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and as approved by the relevant government authorities, Shiguan Road
Limited transferred to Shenzhen Guanshun at a total consideration of RMB&52 million an
operating right to operate the Shenzhen Shiguan Road and Bridge, which is located in
Shenzhen Municipality, the PRC, for a period of 20 years commencing on 12 April 2002.

As at 31 December 2004, the remaining amortisation pericd of this operating concession
is 17 years and 4 months.

(b) Deferred development costs
In 2002, government assistance of HK$4,710,000 was received from a government authority of
the PRC in relation to a technology development project undertaken by the Group and was
accounted for as a deduction in arriving at the carrying value of the deferred development costs.
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19. Goodwill and negative goodwill

The amounts of the goodwill and negative goodwill capitalised as an asset or recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet, arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and minority interests, are as

follows:
Group
Negative
Notes Goodwill goodwill
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2003 171,725 (68,625)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) 141,154 -
Acquisition of minority interests 26,710 (4,545)
At 31 December 2003 339,589 (73,170)
At 1 January 2004:
As previously reported 339,589 (73,170)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 2(d) (36,822) 73,170
As restated 302,767 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 45(a) 27,052 -
Acquisition of minority interests 4,761 -
Reclassification from interests in jointly-controlled
entities as a result of the related jointly-controlled
entities became subsidiaries during the year 21 17,682 -
Attributable to discontinued operations 11(b) (22,064) -
At 31 December 2004 330,198 -
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment/(recognition as income):
At 1 January 2003 16,426 (55,209)
Amortisation provided/(recognised as income)
for the year 20,396 (10,414)
Impairment during the year recognised in
the profit and loss account 2,356 -
At 31 December 2003 38,178 (65,623)
At 1 January 2004:
As previously reported 39,178 (65,623)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 2(d) (36,822) 65,623
As restated 2,356 -
Impairment during the year recognised in
the profit and loss account 17,512 -
Attributable to discontinued aperations 11(b) (19,868) -
At 31 December 2004 - -
Net book value:
At 31 December 2004 330,198 -
At 31 December 2003 300,411 (7,547)
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19. Goodwill and negative goodwill (continued)

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, in respect of acquisitions of subsidiaries before
1 January 2001, the Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in
respect of acquisitions, which occurred prior to the adoption of the HKFRS, to remain eliminated against
the consolidated capital reserve.

The amount of goodwill and negative goodwill remaining in the consolidated capital reserve, arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, are as follows:

Group
Negative
Goodwill goodwill
eliminate against credited to
consolidated consolidated
capital reserve capital reserve
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2003 and 31 December 2003 429,693 (657,924)
At 1 January 2004:
As previously reported 429,693 (657,924)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 — note 2(d) ~ 657,924
As restated and at 31 December 2004 429,693 -
Accumulated impairment:
At 1 January 2003 - -
Impairment during the year recognised in
the profit and loss account 5132 -
At 31 December 2003 and 2004 5,132 -
Net amount:
At 31 December 2004 424,561 -
At 31 December 2003 424,561 (657,924)
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19. Goodwill and negative goodwill (continued)

(a) As detailed in note 2(d) to the financial statements, on the adoption of HKFRS 3 during the year:
. the Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from 1 January 2004;

. accumulated amortisation of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and minority
interests of HK$36,822,000 as at 1 January 2004 has been eliminated with a corresponding
decrease in the cost of goodwill as at 1 January 2004;

. from the year ended 31 December 2004 onwards, goodwill is tested annually for impairment,
as well as when there are indications of impairment; and

. following the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, the carrying amount of the negative
goodwill recognised on the consolidated balance sheet and remained credited to the
consolidated capital reserve of HK$7,547,000 and HK$657,924,000, respectively, as at 1
January 2004 were derecognised by way of an adjustment to the opening retained profits
and minority interests as at 1 January 2004 of HK$663,614,000 and HK$1,857,000,
respectively.

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill
Carrying amount of the goodwill acquired through acquisitions has been allocated to the relevant
business units of the following individual business segments of the Group for impairment testing

as follows:
Group
31 December 1 January
Notes 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Continuing operations:
Retail operations segment () 33,822 7,018
Expressway and toll road
operations segment (i) 21,687 21,687
Telecommunications and 1T related
services and products segment ) 132,622 128,107
Geothermal energy systems segment () 104,283 104,283
Others 37,784 23,239
330,198 284,334
Discontinued operations — Dairy operations 11¢(b) 2,196 16,077
Total goodwill 332,394 300,411
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19. Goodwill and negative goodwill (continued)

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
(i)  The recoverable amounts of the relevant business units of these business segments have
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections which are
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period ranging from 5
years to 9 years. The discounted rate applied to cash flow projections is 5%.

(i)  The recoverable amount of the relevant business unit in the expressway and toll road
operations segment has been determined based on a value in use calculation. To calculate
this, cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a 18-year period which were prepared by reference to a traffic and toll revenue
forecast issued by independent valuers. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections
is 13.5%, which is the average discounted rate for the toll road industry in Mainland China.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, an impairment loss of HK$17,512,000 has been
recognised in the profit and loss account for the goodwill of a business unit of the Group's dairy
operations segment as the senior management of the Group believes that that business unit is
unable to generate positive cashflows in the foreseeable future.

Based on the impairment testing of goodwill, in the opinion of the directors, no further impairment
provision is considered necessary for the remaining balance of the Group's goodwill.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations
The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

. Budgeted turnover
Budgeted turnover are based on the following assumptions:

~ in respect of the relevant business unit in expressway and toll road segment, based
on the traffic and toll revenue forecast issued by independent valuers; and

- in respect of the business units in other business segments, with reference to i) the

expected growth rate of the market in which the assessed entity operates and ii) the
expected market share of the assessed entity.
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19. Goodwill and negative goodwill (continued)

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
. Budgeted gross margins
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements.

. Business environment

No major changes in the existing political, legal and economic conditions in the PRC and
other locations in which the assessed entity carried on its business.

20. Interests in subsidiaries

Company
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$' 000
Unlisted shares, at cost 4,100,247 4,120,771
Due from subsidiaries 2,890,020 2,415,770
Loans to a subsidiary - 20,255
Due to subsidiaries (813,280) (571,005)

6,176,987 5,985,791
Provision for impairment (261,751) (165,414)

5,915,236 5,820,377

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The loans to a subsidiary in the prior year were unsecured, bore interest at the prevailing market rate of
bank loans with a similar tenure and had no fixed terms of repayment.
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company name

Place of

incorporation/

registration

and operations

Issued and
paid-up capital/
registered capital

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Company

Group

Principal
activities

Beijing Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited *

ERWE(BEEE)RD

BRI A (Bactou Yanjing

Brewery Company

Limited) ("Yanjing Baotou")

BRBE (EMER)
RIDERAA

(Yanjing Brewery (Cuilin Liquan)

Company Limited)

ERWE(FE)BRER
2 @) (Yanjing Brewery
(Chifeng) Company
Limited)

ERRE (BN BRER
7] (Yanjing Brewery
{Ganzhou) Company
Limited)

ARBE(BR)ER
A8 (Yanjing Brewery
(Hengyang) Company
Limited)

AEERBERRAT
(Hunan Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited)

IERREBEERELLT

(Jiangxi Yanjing Brewery
Company Limited)

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

RMB674,643,432

RMB193,219,374

RMB 138,600,000

RMB113,070,200

RMB86,880,000

RMB180,660,000

RMB95,000,000

RMB129,511,385

54.86

43.08+%

40611

38.811

52.61

51.43

50.82

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Production and
sale of beer

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Annual Report 2004



Nctes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

20. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and

Percentage of

registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations registered capital interest held by activities
_ Company Group

RREE RN ARAA PRC/ RMB187,053,800 - 69 Production and
(Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
(Laizhou) Company
Limited)

EREEWREL) RNBR PRC/ RMB83,499,643 - 30571 Praduction and
28] (Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
(Shandong Wuming)

Company Limited)

RREE (BH)EROF PRC/ RMB170,700,000 - 53.58 Production and
(Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
(Xiangfan) Company
Limited)

BRAREEERLA PRC/  RMB140,000,000 - 52.9 Production and
(Fujian Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
Company Limited)

EREZEHBRAE PRC/ US$20,000,000 - 41.15% Production and
(Beijing Yanjing Beverage Mainland China sale of beverages
Company Limited)

AR CHIUE) BEAF PRC/ RMB133,350,000 - 41.15% Production and
(Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
(Zhejiang Xiandu)

Company Limited)
EREE (RY)ERLA PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 52.12 Production and

(Yanjing Brewery
(Changsha) Company
Limited)

Mainland China
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Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations  registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group

RAOEEAERREHERRLA PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 52.12 Production and
(Changsha Huanan Mainland China sale of beer
Yanjing Brewery Sales Co.,

Ltd.)

SR (k) BRAE PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 54.67 Production and
(Yanjing Brewery (Xiantao) Mainland China sale of beer
Company Limited) &

BRERBEERLA PRC/  RMB100,000,000 - 66.15 Production and
(Guangdong Yanjing Brewery Mainland China sale of beer
Company Limited) &

EREE(BE=H)ARET PRC/ RMB230,769,230 - 55.55 Production and
73] (Yanjing Brewery Qufu Mainland China sale of beer
Sankong Co,, Ltd.)

("Yanjing Sankong") &

Beijing Wangfujing PRC/ RMB392,973,026 - 50.1 Department
Department Store Mainland China store operations
(Group) Co,, Ltd.

("Wangfujing" *

RBIRFEEERAT PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 35.071 Department
(Chengdu Wang Fu ling Mainland China store operations
Department Store Co., and property
Ltd.) development

BNIRHFBEREER PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1 Department

EfFE 2 A (Guangzhou
Wangfujing Department Store
Company Limited)

Mainland China

store operations
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20. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of

registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations  registered capital interest held by activities
‘ Company Group

REIRHEERREALT PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 50.1 Department
(Wuhan Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Department Store
Company Limited)

AEIRFEERREFLA PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1 Department
(Baotou Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Department Store
Co, Ltd)

EETR#EEEREALA PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1 Department
(Chongging Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Department Store
Co, Ltd)

LEEIRHBRERRERLA PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 50.1 Department
(Shijiazhuang Wangfujing Mainland China store operations
Departmenit Store
Co, Ltd,)

T RELRBSEREALA PRC/ RMB280,000,000 - 50.1 Department
(Beijing Shuang An Mainland China store operations
Department Store Co,,

Ltd.) (“Shuang An")8
Beijing Sanyuan Foods Co,, Ltd. * PRC/ RMB635,000,000 - 57.11 Production
Mainland China and sale of
dairy products

WREB=TAXER PRC/ RMB67,714,661 - 4188+ Production
& 2R (Hu Lun Bei Er Mainland China and sale of

San Yuan Dairy Company
Limited)
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20. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Notes to Financial Statements

Issued and

Percentage of

31 December 2004

registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations  registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group

Beijing Capital Expressway PRC/ US$64,053,700 - 96 Operations of
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China an expressway

Shenzhen Guanshun Road PRC/ RMB217 500,000 - 53.08 Operations of
& Bridge Co, Ltd. Mainland China a toll road

BAEBRMRERERAA PRC/ RVB118,685,285 10.41 68.65 Production
(Ever Source Mainland China and sale of
Scientific and Technology geothermal
Development Co., Ltd.) energy systems

ERABERERRERARAF PRC/ US83,000,000 - 69.81 Licence
(Beljing Enterprises Ever Source Mainland China holding
(Beijing) Company Limited)

LR XREERERECLA PRC/ RMB2,483,160 - 3560t Production and
(Beijing Ever Hot Mainland China sale of machineries
Pumps Co,, Ltd.) for geothermal
("Ever Hot Pumps") & energy systems

TREERERERR PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 54.92 Installation of
ZEIBARADA Mainland China geotherml
(Beijing Ever Source energy systems
Environmental Equipment
Installation Co,, Ltd.)

Beijing Bei Kong Water PRC/ US$1,000,000 100 100 Operations of a
Production Co., Ltd. © Mainland China water treatment

plant

REEEREREEREAANF PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 50.1 Property
(Beijing Hongye Real Mainland China investment and
Estate Development Co. Ltd.) development
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20. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

110

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations  registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group
Beijing Maglev Technology PRC/ RMB80,000,000 63.75 90.94 Research and
Development Co,, Ltd. Mainland China development
of magnetic
levitation
technology and
provision of
related services
Beijing Development Hong Kong HK$493,981,150 - 55.81 Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited nolding
Xteam Software International Cayman Islands/ HK$37,584,718 - 31.42% Investment
Limited 8 A n Hong Kong holding
ERTe (PE) ZHRMERL T PRC/ US$3,000,000 - 31425 Sale of computer
(Xteam Software (China) Co,, Mainland China software and
Limited) 8 4 Q provision of
related services
LEUFRERLA PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 3817+ Provision of
(Becom Software Co,, Ltd)) Mainland China management
information
system services
LELEEEREERMBRDF PRC/ RMB65,000,000 - 40.181 Construction
(Beijing Enterprises Teletron Mainland China of information
Infarmation Technology networks,

Co, Ltd) Q
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20. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2004

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration paid-up capital/ attributable equity Principal
Company name and operations  registered capital interest held by activities
Company Group

HEEERRRBEARDR PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 22.88% Construction

(Hunan Education Information Mainland China of information

Senvice Co,, Ltd.) networks and

provision of {T
technical support
services

ERIEFEEISHF TR PRC/ RIB2,000,000 - 31424 Software
RWERAF Mainland China development
(Beijing Enterprises VST
Software Technology Co,, Ltd.)

("VST Software")

Beijing Enterprises PRC/ US$30,000,000 97.99 97.99 Investment
Heldings High-Tech Mainland China holding
Development Co,, Ltd.

("High-Tech")

Beijing Enterprises PRC/ HK$41,100,000 100 100 Provision of
Holdings Investment Mainland China management
Management Co.,, Ltd. and consultancy

services

TREWBHEEERLA PRC/ US$2,700,000 51 51 Production and
(Beijing Feng Shou Mainland China sale of wine
Winery Co, Ltd.)

EREEREEERAA PRC/ RMB1 1,880,000 51 51 Production and
(Beijing Shun Xing Mainland China sale of wine
Wine Co, Ltd.)

Beijing Western-Style PRC/ RMB15,750,000 - 95 Processing
Food Co.,, Ltd. Mainland China and sale of

food products

IRERDZREETEER PRC/ US$4,000,000 - 47715 Property

727} (Beijing Development Mainland China investment

Property Investment and
Management Co, Ltd.)

Beijin